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Ralle:blllty
Func’:uality
Qu;lity
Rasponsivanal;s o customers
Ta serve customers Including "dlffer;nﬂy abled" commuters with passion
To make Nolda Metro aalf-;ustﬂlnabla and sco-friandly.
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CHAIRMAN'S SPEECH

Dear Shareholders,

warmly welcome you all to the fourth Annual General Mesting of your

Comparny, Nolda Metro Rall Corporation Limited. On behalf of your

trusted Board, | extend my heartfeit thanks to all of you for Joining us
today. The Audlied Annual Accounts for the Financlal Year 2017-18, the
Board's Report and the Statutory Auditor's Report aleng with the
comments of the Compftroller and Auditor General of India (CEAG)
therson, have already been circulated to all of you and with your due |
permission, | takea them as read.

In the year 2008, Govemment of U.P. felt the need for an efiiclent MASS RAPID TRANSIT
SYSTEM In NOIDA and GREATER NOIDA that ahould be efficlent, modam, convenlent and
affordable for the public and designed the ldea of coming up with an entlty dedicated towands
the fulfilment of this need. The Company, after conducting various preliminary studies,
ressarches, obtaining various reports and approvals as were required, signed a Memorandum
of Understanding (MoU) with DMRC in the month of Octobar, 2014 for exacution of Noida-
Greater Noida Project. As per approved DPR of Noida-Greater Noida Projedt, it was decided o
implement a total length of 29.707km mafro connaction from Noida to Greater Noida. The
stretch shall consist of 21 stations out of which 15 shall be Noida & 6 shall be Greater Noida
stations.

Since then, the Company has covered g long distance and has advanced to a developed stage.
The preject which was visualized by Govemment of UP in the year 2006 is now in its complstion
stage and the Company is ready to commence its commercial operations soon. Initial trials
began in the month of January, 2018 and Oscillation trials were camied by ateam of RDS0 in the
month of May, 2018. Full signaling trials on 30 km corridor were commenced from 20th August,
2018. The Company has also entered into an Operation & Maintenance agreament with
DMRC wherein DMRC shall operate Noida-Greater Noida corridor ag Operator for a period of
one yaar or as mutually agreed from the date of commencement of commerclal operation, will
dspute stafi/officers as handholding support and shall be required to obtaln all stetutory
clearancas for the O&M of NMRC during Its tenure as Metro Rallway Administration.
Commissioner of Metro Rall Safety (CMRS) Inspecilon was camied out In the month of
Dacember, 2018 and CMRC has given sanction for commarcial oparation of the corridor. All
stalutory clearances have been obtained from RDS0 and Ministry of Railways. Project is nowin
its final stage and is all sat forimplementation in this financial year itsslf,
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Apart from Metro Rail Project, the company is sucoessfully nunning “AC City Bus Service”
Project in Noida and Greater Noida thereby connecting twin cities. In order to provide last mile
connedclivity o metre commuters these city buses shall be utilized as metro feeder Buses along
with the catchment areas of metro stations. Non- Motorized transport system is likely io be
introduced lika a+ickshaws, walkways for pedestrians, e- bikes/s-cycles. The Company has
adopted varlous green Inltiatives to minimize any negative Impact of its operations on the
anvironment by adopting graen bullding norma In construction, have bsen taken by the
Company, Installation of solar panels on roof top, making avallable rainwater harvesting
provislons at all statlons, ete.

Through our journey of progrees and growth, the Company has also received many prestigious
awards for lts ongoing projacts. You would be glad to know that, among others, your Company
has been honored with the “Spaclal Award® to NMRC as commendable Inliiative In the category
of "Best Clty Bus Service Project” on the occaslon of 10th Urban Mobllity Indla Conferance and
recelvad “IGBC PLATINUM" rating for all 21 elevated siations of NMRC from |IGBC Green
Rating System. We shall endeavor to continue performing better and malntain and develop
further the frust and confidence reposad in us by our atakeholders. We as a managemant shall
ensurs complets transparency in our operations and compliance in true letter and spirit.

On this note, | would like to thank all our shareholders, Govemment of Indla, Governmant of
Utter Pradesh, Nolda Authority, Greater Nolda Authority, CMRC, our employeas and other
gtakeholdars fortheir continued support and Involvement In the functioning of our Company.

With this 4th Annual General Meeting of the Company comes to an end. Thank you all for
attending the mesting and | hereby declare the proceedings ag closed. Thank you very much.

{K Sanjay Murthy}
Chalrman
Neolda Metro Rall Corporatien Limied
Date:
Place:
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MAJOR EVENTS IN 2017-18

4th Anmyal General Meeting held on 28.12.2018
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MAJOR EVENTS IN 201718
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MAJOR EVENTS IN 2017-18
—

(Y~ SES T
Laumching of last glvder Nolda & Greater Noida Cerridor Launching of last glrder Noida & Greater Noida Corridor

Republic Dey celebration at NMRG
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Noida Metro Rail Corpo
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(A joint venture of Gowt. of India and Govt. of U.P)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,
NOIDA Metro Rail Corporation Limited

ration Lid.

Your Directors are delighted to present their Fourth (4th) Report on the business and operations
of the Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the Financial Year (FY)

ended 31stMarch, 2018.
1. SUMMARY OF FINANCIALRESULTS

Brief summary and key aspects of the Company'’s audited financials for the current FY
2017-18 and previous FY 2016-17, prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting

Standards (‘Ind AS’), is tabulated as under:

(T in Lakh)
Particulars Forthe year ended Forthe yearended
31stMarch, 2018 31stMarch, 2017
Income from Operations 981.31 138.91
Other Income 3,591.76 2,220.27
Total Income 4,573.07 2,359.18
Total Expenditure 5,067.00 3,024.92
Profit before Exceptional item and Tax (493.93) (665.74)
Add: Exceptional Items - -
Less: Tax Expenses — Deferred Tax
(including provision for current tax,
MAT & deferred tax) - (46.66)
Profitduring the year (493.93) (712.40)
Less: Appropriation - -
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet (493.93) (712.40)

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The highlights of the financial performance of the Company based on the figures of current FY

and previous FY are as under:

i. Revenue from Operation (City Bus) (¥in Lakh)

Current Year Previous year Increased Decreased
981.31 138.91 842.40 -
ii. NetProfit/loss (in¥)
Current Year Previous year Increased Decreased
-493.93 -712.40 218.47 B
iii. Earnings pershare(in¥)
Current Year Previous year Increased Decreased
1. Basic:-1.65 -2.37 0.72 -
2. Diluted:-1.65 -2.37 0.72 -

Block-Ill, 3rd Floor, Ganga Shopping Complex, Sector-29, Neida 201301, Disit. Gautam Budh Nagor, Ph.: 0120-4344483/84
Fax: 0120-4344485, E-mail: nmrenoida@gmail.com, Website: www.nmrenoida.com, CIN: U60231UP2014SGC066849
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. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Noida Metro Rail Corporation Limited is an SPV established for the purpose of planning,
building and establishing of Mass transit and other urban transport and people mover
systems of all types and disciplines. The Company has presently undertaken two major
projects namely Metro Rail between Noida and Greater Noida and City Bus services
between Noida & Greater Noida and in the cities of Noida and Greater Noida. Noida Metro
Rail project is in development stage and City Bus services project is in operation.

. TRANSFERTORESERVES

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2018, the Company has not transferred any
amount towards the general reserves of the Company.

. DIVIDEND

The Company being in its development phase has incurred loss during the year under
review. Hence, directors do not propose any dividend to be declared.

. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND

PROTECTION FUND

The Company has not declared any dividend in the previous years hence there is no
unclaimed dividend to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund; thus, the
provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company in the
year under review.

. DEPOSITS

The Company has notinvited / accepted any deposits from the public during the FY 2017-18
in terms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.

. CHANGEIN THE STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

a. NMRC - Joint Venture between Government of India (Gol) and Government of
Uttar Pradesh (GoUP)

The Company, during the FY 2017-18, underwent a major change in its corporate
structure as it entered into a tripartite Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) dated
17th February, 2018 with the Government of India (Gol) and Government of Uttar
Pradesh (GoUP) regarding the Noida — Greater Noida Metro Rail Project. The
Company is now a Special Purpose Vehicle in the nature of Joint Venture between Gol
and GoUP.

b. Adoption of New set of Articles of Association of the Company
Pursuant to this MoU entered, the Company adopted new set of Articles of Association
in the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the members of the Company held on 23rd

February, 2018 in order to comply with the conditions stipulated in the MoU and to
bring the existing Articles of Association in line with the required modified articles.

11
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Increase in issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company

The Company, further in compliance with the requirements of MoU, issued and allotted
6,87,62,000 equity shares of X 100/- each (Rupees One Hundred Only) amounting to
% 6,87,62,00,000 (Rupees Six Hundred Eighty Seven Crore Sixty Two Lakh Only) to
Government of India in the name of the President of India in its Board Meeting held on
02nd June, 2018. Thus, there was an increase in the issued, subscribed and paid-up
equity share capital of the Company.

9. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

9.1 During the financial year 2017-18, there were major significant changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company which are as under:

a.

Shri Santosh Kumar Yadav, bearing DIN 07528743 ceased to be the Director of the
Company with effect from 24th April, 2017.

Shri Amit Mohan Prasad, Former CEO NOIDA, bearing DIN 07214025 was appointed
as Managing Director on the Board of the company with effect from 24th April, 2017.
He ceased to be the Director of the Company with effect from 09th September, 2017.

Shri Deepak Agarwal, former CEO Greater NOIDA, bearing DIN 07321522 ceased to
be the Director of the Company with effect from 05th June, 2017.

Shri Debasish Panda, Former CEO Greater NOIDA, bearing DIN 06473085 was
appointed as Additional Director on the Board of the Company with effect from 05th
June, 2017 and was regularized as Director with effect from 30th December, 2017. He
ceased to be the Director with effect from 23rd March, 2018.

Shri Rama Raman, former Principal Secretary, Industrial Development UP, bearing DIN
01120265 ceased to be the Director of the Company with effect from 05th June, 2017.

Shri Alok Sinha, Principal Secretary, Industrial Development UP, bearing DIN
02669682 was appointed as Additional Director on the Board of the Company with
effect from 05th June, 2017 and was regularized as Director with effect from 30th
December, 2017. He ceased to be the Director with effect from 19th March, 2018.

Shri Rahul Prasad Bhatnagar, former Infrastructure & Industrial Development
Commissioner, U.P. Govt., bearing DIN 06468702 ceased to be the Additional Director
of the Company with effect from 29th June, 2017.

Shri Pramod Kumar Agrawal, former ACEO NOIDA, bearing DIN 07413769 ceased to
be the Director of the Company with effect from 30th June, 2017.

Shri Krishan Kumar, former ACEO Greater NOIDA, bearing DIN 07598400 ceased to
be the Director of the Company with effect from 10th July, 2017.

Shri Bal Krishna Tripathi, ACEO Greater NOIDA, bearing DIN 07907371 was
appointed as an Additional Director on the Board of the Company with effect from 11th
July, 2017 and was regularized as Director with effect from 30th December, 2017.

Shri Anup Chandra Pandey, Infrastructure & Industrial Development Commissioner,
U.P. Gowt, bearing DIN 00267876 was appointed as Additional Director on the Board
of the Company with effect from 07th September, 2017 and was regularized as
Director with effect from 30th December, 2017.

12
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Shri Alok Tandon, CEO NOIDA, bearing DIN 01841717 was appointed as Managing
Director on the Board of the company with effect from 09th September, 2017.

Shri Atal Kumar Rai, ACEO NOIDA, bearing DIN 07962232 was appointed as an
Additional director on the Board of the Company with effect from 10th October, 2017
was regularized as Director with effect from 30th December, 2017. He ceased to be
Director with effect from 31st January, 2018.

Ms. Anupriya Garg, holding Membership No. 18612, ceased to be the Company
Secretary (Key Managerial Personnel) of the Company with effect from 16th August,
2017.

Ms. Nisha Wadhawan, holding Membership No. 51239, was appointed as Company
Secretary (Key Managerial Personnel) of the Company with effect from 15th
September, 2017.

Ms. Leenu Sahgal, GM — Planning Greater NOIDA, bearing DIN 06813365 ceased to
be the Director of the Company with effect from 26th February, 2018.

In terms of MoU entered by the Company, there was a major change in the
composition of Board of Directors of the Company. The following changes
among the Directors took place during the current financial year 2017-18 (before
the date of Annual General Meeting):

Shri Manoj Kumar, Additional Secretary D&C, Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs,
Government of India, bearing DIN 00455180, was appointed as Nominee Director on
the Board of the Company with effect from 19th April, 2018.

Ms. Jhanja Tripathy, Joint Secretary and Financial Advisor, Ministry of Housing and
Urban Affairs, Government of India, bearing DIN 06859312, was appointed as
Nominee Director on the Board of the Company with effect from 19th April, 2018.

Shri Mukund Kumar Sinha, Joint Secretary & Officer on Special Duty (Urban
Transport) at Ministry of Housing & Urban Affairs, Government of India, bearing DIN
06774923, was appointed as Nominee Director on the Board of the Company with
effect from 19th April, 2018.

Shri Vinay Kumar Singh, Managing Director, National Capital Region Transport
Corporation Limited (NCRTC), bearing DIN 06487700, was appointed as Nominee
Director on the Board of the Company with effect from 19th April, 2018.

Shri Bal Krishna Tripathi, former ACEO Greater NOIDA, bearing DIN 07907371
ceased to be the Director of the Company with effect from 21st May, 2018.

Shri Arun Vir Singh, former CEO Yamuna Authority, bearing DIN 07349134 ceased to
be the Director of the Company with effect from 21st May, 2018.

Shri Manmohan Mishra, former Finance Controller NOIDA, bearing DIN 06760087
ceased to be the Director of the Company with effect from 21st May, 2018.

Shri Kishore Pal Singh, bearing DIN 00103165 ceased to be Independent Director of
the Company with effect from 25th May, 2018.

Shri Gyan Prakash Garg, bearing DIN 07213525 ceased to be Independent Director of
the Company with effect from 26th May, 2018.

13
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Shri. Rajesh Kumar Singh, Principal Secretary, 1IDD Lucknow, Government of Uttar
Pradesh, bearing DIN 06459343, appointed as Nominee Director on the Board of the
Company with effect from 06th August, 2018.

Shri Achal Jain, ED (L&A)-1, Railway Board, Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs,
Government of India, bearing DIN 08223028, appointed as Nominee Director on the
Board of the Company with effect from 12th September, 2018.

Shri Narendra Bhooshan, CEO Greater Noida, Government of Uttar Pradesh, bearing
DIN 02531065 appointed as a Nominee Director on the Board of the Company with
effect from 14th September, 2018.

Shri Manoj Kumar, Additional Secretary D&C, Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs,
Government of India, bearing DIN 00455180, ceased to be Nominee Director and
Chairman of the Company with effect from 01st October, 2018.

Shri K Sanjay Murthy, Additional Secretary W&H, Ministry of Housing and Urban
Affairs, Government of India, bearing DIN 03532374, was appointed as Nominee
Director on the Board of the Company with effect from 01st October, 2018.

In terms of the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, presently, Mr. Alok
Tandon (Managing Director), Mr. P. D. Upadhyay (C.F.0.) and Ms. Nisha Wadhawan
(Company Secretary) are designated as Key Managerial Persons (“KMP”) of the Company.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board
hereby submits its Responsibility Statement:—

a)

b)

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had
been followed along with proper explanation(s) relating to material departures, if any;

the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and
statement of profit and loss of the company for that period;

the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws, Secretarial Standards and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER
SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has not granted any loan, guarantee or made investment within the meaning
of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the FY 2017-18 and hence the said
provision is not applicable on the Company during the year under review.

14
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES

There was no contract or arrangement made with related parties during the year under
review in terms of the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. But there were
transactions with related parties which are covered under Accounting Standard-18 for
which necessary disclosure is provided in notes to the financial statements.

ANNUAL RETURN

The extracts of Annual Retumn in form MGT - 9 pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3)
and Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished and annexed as Annexure -C
to this Board Report.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTVENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company.

STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company has in place a risk management policy.

As a part of the risk assessment and minimization procedures, the Company is ensuring
timely identification of risk areas with regard to the operations of the Company and has
initiated steps, wherever possible, for mitigation of risk. The Company's Board is conscious
of the need to review the risk assessment and minimization procedures on regular intervals.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIRADEQUACY

The Company has put in place all the necessary internal controls and checks and balances
which are being reviewed on a continuous basis to ensure that the assets and resources of
the Corporation are safeguarded.

The Company has appointed external firms of Chartered Accountants to conduct Internal
Audit at its units / branches whose periodic reports are reviewed by the Management for
bringing about possible improvement wherever necessary.

SECRETARIALAUDITORAND THEIR REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board appointed
M/s. J. K. Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries, having its office at 256 & 257,
Vardhman City Centre 2, Near Shakti Nagar Railway Under Bridge, Gulabi Bagh, Delhi-
110052 as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to carry out the Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the financial year 2017-18.

The Secretarial Audit Report given by M/s. J. K. Gupta & Associates for the FY 2017-18 in
form MR-3 is annexed and marked as Annexure — B. The Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark made by the Secretarial Auditor.

15
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STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIRREPORT

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder, the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) appointed M/s. SAMPRK &
Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAIl Firm registration no. 013022N) having its office
at F-309, Parshvanath Prestige, Sector-93A, Expressway, Noida-201304 as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2017-18.

The Company has received Statutory Audit Report on the financial statement for the
financial year 2017-18, which forms part of the Annual Report of the company. There are no
qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer made by M/s. SAMPRK &
Associates, in their Audit Report. Further, there was no fraudulent activity reported in the
Audit Report.

COMMENTS OF COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA AND THE
MANAGEMENT’S REPLY

The Report of the Statutory Auditor of the Company along with audited financial statement
for the financial year 2017-18 was submitted to Comptroller & Auditor General of India
(C&AG) for its comments thereupon in accordance with the provisions of Section 143(5) of
the CompaniesAct, 2013.

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India vide letter dated 26.12.2018 has submitted final
comments on the financial statements of NMRC for the year ended on 31st March 2018.The
management reply on these comments is submitted as under:-

Comments of the CEAG

Management Comment

Balance Sheet
Equity and Liabilities
Equity share capital (Note-12):Rs 300.05 crore

(i) As per clause 3 of the Articles of Association (AOA) of the
Company, NMRC is a Government Company. As per Section
2 (45) of the Companies Act 2013, “Government
company means any company in which not less than fifty one
percent of the paid —up share capital is held by the Central
Government, or by any State Government or Governments,
or partly by the Central Government and partly by one or
more State Governments, and includes a company which is a
subsidiary company of such a Government company”.

As on 31 March 2018, the paid up capital of ¥ 300.05 crore
(3,00,05,000 equity shares of ¥ 100 each) of the Company is
subscribed by NOIDA and Greater Noida Authorities which
are the autonomous bodies of the Government of Uttar
Pradesh. Shareholding by autonomous Bodies on behalf of
the State Government is not covered under the definition in
Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013. The shareholding
held by above autonomous bodies should have been allotted
to Governor of Uttar Pradesh for the Company to be
categorised as a Government Company in terms of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

i) Necessary disclosure
shall be made in annual
accounts for the financial
year 2018-19. However,
NMRC management is
consistently following up
this matter with the state
government i.e. GoUP for
further infusion of equity as
per MOU.

16
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(i) Reference is invited to 'Other Matters’ Para 2 of the
Independent Auditors’ Report wherein they have stated: “ As
per Clause 1 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Company is a Special Purpose Vehicle in the nature of
Joint venture with the contribution of 50:50 Government of
India and Government of Uttar Pradesh. The Share Capital of
the Company is held by NOIDA Authority and Greater NOIDA
Authority in the proportion of 2,10,03,500 and 90,01,500
shares respectively which are autonomous bodies of the
State Governement of UP. Further, Governement of India has
given share application money for 6,87,62,000 shares,
allotment of which has been made during the financial year
2018-19. Hence shareholding is not in proportion in
accordance with provisions as per Articles of Association.
Ourreportis not qualified in respect of this matter”.

The above comment of the Statutory Auditor is deficient as it
does not bring out that during 2017-18, the Company has not
fulfilled the requirement of Section 2(45) of the Companies
Act 2013 to be categorised as a Government Company.

(iii) A tripartite Memorandum of Understanding was executed (17
February 2018) among Government of India, Government of
Uttar Pradesh and the Company for Noida-Greater Noida
Rail Project financing pattern which inter-alia included equity
contribution by the Government of India (Gol) and the
Government of Uttar Pradesh (GoUP) in the ratio of 50:50 .
This fact, having a bearing on shareholding pattern has not
been disclosed in the Note 12 of Notes forming part of
Financial Statements.

ii) Pertains to Statutory
Auditors

iii) Necessary disclosure
shall be made in Annual
Accounts for the financial
year2018-19

In addition to this, the Comptroller & Auditor General of India vide letter no. gogsio—1 /&g
oI / U0vHoROwI0 / 201718 / 1211 dated 26.12.2018 has submitted final comments on the
financial statements of NMRC for the year ended on 31st March 2018.The management reply

on these comments is submitted as under:-

Comments of the C&AG

Management Comment

(i) In terms of the section 2(40) of the 2013 Act, “Financial
statement” includes a balance sheet as at end of the financial
year, a profit and loss account for the financial year cash flow
statement for the financial year, a statement of change in
equity and notes to accounts forming part of the financial
statement. In terms of section 134 (1) Companies, 2013 the
financial statement shall be signed on behalf of the Board at
least by the chairperson of the company where he is
authorized by the Board or by the two directors out of which
one shall be managing director and the Chief Executive
Officer, if he is a director of the Company, the Chief Finacial
Officer and the company secretary of the company. All note to
account of the financial statements has not been signed by
the aforesaid authorized signatories. Hence authentication of
financial statement has not been done as required by section
134 (1) of the Companies Act2013.

Noted for future
compliance.
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(i) The following arithmetical inaccuracies asre noticed in the Financial Statements for the year

NMRC

ended 31 March 2018 as detailed below:

S| |Statement/ As depicted| Asitshould | Remarks
No.|[Note (Z.Inlakh) | be¥.Inlakh)
1. |Statementof |5067.00 5067.01 Totalling mistake in| Noted for future
Profitand Loss expenditure compliance.
2. |Statementof |[(493.93) (493.94) Figure of loss
Profitand Loss changed due
to above
3. |Statementof 1353.13 13563.12 Retained earings
change in Equ
4. |Note-2 Capital |649.21 649.22 Electric connection
work in progress| charges
5. |Note-2Capital |304245.06 | 304245.08 | Totaloffigure “As
work in progress| atMarch 31,2018
6. |Note-13 207961.12 | 207961.11 Grand Total
Other equity
7. |Note-26 790.05 790.06 Total
Other Expenses
(iii) Explanatory Note for No. 9 blow Current Financial Assets-others| Noted for future
(Note-9) stipulated “Short term advance above includes an| compliance.
amount of ¥7112.26 lakhs (Previous Year ¥15875.39 lakh) paid to
DMRC for the Construction of Metro corridor but has not been
utilised by the DMRC".
The above explanatory note does not pertain to Note 9.

20. COSTRECORDSANDAUDIT

21,

22,

The provisions relating to Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 does not

apply to the Company during the year under review.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a formal annual
performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and individual directors, was carried
outduring the financial year 2017-18.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE
FINANCIALYEAR2017-18

The Board, in the due course of performing its duties, met Four (4) times during the
financial year under review respectively held on—

i 05th June, 2017;

ii. 23rd September, 2017;

iii. 30thDecember, 2017; and
iv.  23rd February, 2018.

Adequate quorum was present at each meeting of the Board and all the agenda items
were validly transacted.
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24,

25.

26.

27.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

In terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company had in place a duly
constituted Audit Committee of the Board comprising of the following members as on 31st
March, 2018:

(i) Mr.Kishore Pal Singh, Independent Director, Chairperson of the Committee.
(i) Mr. Alok Tandon, Managing Director, Member of the Committee.

(iii) Mr. Gyan Prakash Garg, Independent Director, Member of the Committee.
(iv) Mr. Manmohan Singh Mishra, Director, Member of the Committee.

The Audit Committee met two times during the FY 2017-18 and necessary quorum was
present at each meeting.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company had in place a duly
constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board comprising of the
following members as on 31st March, 2018:

(i) Mr.Alok Tandon, Managing Director, Member of the Committee.

(i) Mr. Manmohan Singh Mishra, Director, Member of the Committee.

(iii) Mr. Gyan Prakash Garg, Independent Director, Member of the Committee.
(iv) Mr. Kishore Pal Singh, Independent Director, Member of the Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met one time during the FY 2017-18 and
necessary quorum was present at each meeting.

DISCLOSURE OF VIGIL MECHANISM

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 with respect to Vigil
Mechanism is not applicable to the Company.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company follows the practice to provide a work environment free of any sort of sexual
harassment whether physical, verbal or psychological to all of its employees and ensures
that all the employees of the Company are treated with complete dignity. The Company is
committed towards providing a safe working environment to its female employees.

As per the requirement of ‘The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013’ (‘Act’), the Company has constituted an Internal
Complaints Committees (ICC) which shall be responsible to address and resolve any
complaint(s) related to sexual harassment that may be received at workplace.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign
exchange earnings and outgo as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in
"Annexure A'and is attached to this report.
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28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

NMRC

DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON
ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVE

The Company has not developed any policy for Corporate Social Responsibility. Since the
company is not mandatorily required to spend in CSR activities as the said provisions
concerning CSR are not applicable to the company during the financial year under review.

EXTENSION FORHOLDING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company applied to the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur and got an extension for
holding its Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2017- 18 till 31st December,
2018.

SHARES
a. BuyBackofSecurities

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.
b. SweatEquity

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under
review.

c. BonusShares

No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.
d. Employees Stock Option Plan

The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees.
RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

In compliance with the provisions of the Right to Information Act, 2005 the Corporation has
placed the mechanism for receiving the grievances/complaint of people. Public
Information Officer and Appellate Officer have been designated and all the application
received under this Act has been attended and suitable reply / information furnished to the
applicants.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN
STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

Subsequent to the year ended 31st March 2018, National Green Tribunal “NGT" Principal
Bench has passed an order directing the Company for obtaining the environmental
clearance for the Noida Greater Noida Metro Corridor. The Company has filed the
necessary application and taking requisite actions for obtaining the clearance. However,
the Honorable Supreme Court of India has stayed the order passed by the NGT.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
The following material changes affecting the financial position of the Company occurred

between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements
relate and the date of the Board Report:
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35.
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The issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company increased to ¥
9,87,67,00,000 (Rupees Nine Hundred Eighty Seven Crore Sixty Seven Lakh Only). The
Company issued and allotted 6,87,62,000 equity shares of ¥ 100/- each (Rupees One
Hundred Only) amounting to ¥ 6,87,62,00,000 (Rupees Six Hundred Eighty Seven Crore
Sixty Two Lakh Only) to Government of India in the name of the President of India in its
Board Meeting held on 02nd June, 2018.

However, there were no material commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the Board Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 118(10) of the Companies Act,
2013 relating to Secretarial Standards (SS-1 relating to Meetings of the Board of Directors
and SS-2 relating to General Meetings) specified by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India (‘ICSI').
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Noida Metro Rail Corporation Limited

Alok Tandon

DIN: 01841717
Managing Director
House No.1, Sec-14A,
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Noida 201301, UP

Nisha Wadhawan
Company Secretary
Membership No. 51239
43/18, GF, Block-43,
Ashok Nagar, Delhi-110018
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ANNEXURE - A

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN

EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO ETC:

Information on conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings
and outgo required to be disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder:

(A) Conservation of Energy:
)] The steps taken orimpacton The Company is working in the
conservation of energy. direction of using the renewable
(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing source of energy as far as
alternate sources of energy. possible. The company has
(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation planned to generate 10 MW Solar
equipments. Power for all stations, Depotand
Parking Areas. Action is being
takenin this regard.
(B) Technology absorption:

(i)

the efforts made towards technology absorption

The Company is working towards

the use of latest technology in the

implementation of the project like

1. Smart Cardin Open LoopAFC
System.

2. Half Height Platform Screen
door on all metro stations.

3. ITMSin City Bus Project.

4. Communication based train
control system in Metro.

(ii)

the benefits derived like productimprovement,
cost reduction, product developmentor
import substitution.

N.A

(iii)

in case ofimported technology (imported during
the last three years reckoned from the beginning
ofthe financial year)

(a) the details of technology imported

(b) the year ofimport;

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof.

N.A

(iv)

the expenditure incurred on Research
and Development.

N.A
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Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

The details of foreign exchange earnings & outgo is as follows:

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31stMarch, 2018 31stMarch, 2017
Earning NIL NIL
Expense NIL NIL
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Noida Metro Rail Corporation Limited
Alok Tandon Mukund Kumar Sinha
DIN: 01841717 DIN: 06774923

Managing Director
House No.1, Sec-14A,
Gautam Buddha Nagar,
Noida 201301, UP

Nisha Wadhawan
Company Secretary
Membership No. 51239
43/18, GF, Block-43,
Ashok Nagar, Delhi-110018

Nominee Director
Add:QTR-N-61,

Type 5-B Sector 10,

Nivedita Kunj,

R.K Puram New Delhi-110022

Purn Deo Upadhyay
Chief Financial Officer
Tower-C-1, Flat

No. 1902, Cleo County,
Sec-121, near Sec-70,
Gautam Budhh Nagar,
Noida 201301, UP
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J. K. Gupta & Associates Tel.: +91-11-23644449
(Company Secretaries) +91-11-23654449
256 & 257, Vardhman City Center 2, ' +91-11-23644447
Near Shakti Nagar Railway Under Bridge Fax: +91-11-23644448

Website: www.jkgupta.com

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2018
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Noida Metro Rail Corporation Limited
Block Ill, 3rd Floor,

Ganga Shopping Complex,

Sector-29, Noida,

Gautam Buddha Nagar,

UP-201301

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Noida Metro Rail Corporation Limited
(hereinafter called the “Company”) having its Registered Office at Block I, 3rd Floor, Ganga
Shopping Complex, Sector-29, Noida, Gautam Buddha Nagar, UP-201301. Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company, the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the
explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management,
we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31" March, 2018 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

made available to us and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31,
2018 according to the provisions of:

(i) The CompaniesAct, 2013 ("the Act’) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there
under; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(i)  The Depositories Act, 1996; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)
(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and

External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period)
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(v) The Rules, Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘'SEBI Act'); (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

(vi)  TheListing Agreement with any Stock Exchange; (Not applicable to the Company during
the audit period)

(vii) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with
respect to board and general meetings, generally complied with.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent atleast seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and
recorded as part of the Minutes of the Meetings.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events /actions in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. having a
major bearing on the Company's affairs.

For J. K. Gupta & Associates

Place: Delhi
Date: 06.08.2018

JITESH GUPTA
FCS No. 3978
C P No.: 2448

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and
forms an integral part of this report.
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'"Annexure A'

The Members,

Noida Metro Rail Corporation Limited
Block lll, 3rd Floor,

Ganga Shopping Complex,

Sector-29, Noida,

Gautam Buddha Nagar,

UP-201301

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have relied on the Internal Auditors' Report for the period under review; hence we
have verified the correctness and appropriateness of Statutory Compliances of the
Company on sample basis. The qualifications/Observations mentioned in their Audit
report also forming part of this report.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

For J. K. Gupta & Associates

Place: Delhi
Date: 06.08.2018

JITESH GUPTA
FCS No. 3978
C P No.: 2448
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ANNEXURE-C

FORM NO. MGT-9
EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2018

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U60231UP2014SGC066849

Registration Date

05/11/2014

Name of the Company

Noida Metro Rail Corporation Limited

Category/Sub-Category of the Company

Company limited by shares
State Government Company

Address of the Registered office and
contact details

Block I, 3rd Floor, Ganga Shopping

Complex Sector-29, Noida-201301,
Gautam Buddha Nagar, U.P.

vi.

Whether listed company

No

vii.

Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, ifany

N/A

Il

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be

stated:-
Sr. Name and Description NIC Code of the % to total turnover
No. | ofmain products/services Product/ service ofthe company
1 Urban or suburban passenger 49211 100%
bus transport (excluding chartered
bus)
. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sr. Name AndAddress | CIN/GLN | Holding/ Subsidiary | % ofshares | Applicable
No. | Of The Company IAssociate held Section
1. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Iv. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total

Equity)
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1. Category-wise Share Holding
Category of No. of Shares held No. of Shares held % Change
Shareholders atthe beginning attheend during
ofthe year oftheyear the year
Demat| Physical | Total | %of |Demat| Physical | Total | %of
Total Total
Shares Shares
A. Promoter
1) Indian
a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) State Govt(s) 0 |30005000| 30005000 100 0 | 30005000 30005000| 100 0
d) Bodies Corp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) AnyOther 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (A} {1): 0 [30005000( 30005000 100 0 | 30005000 | 30005000| 100 0
2) Foreign 0
g) NRIis-Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Other-individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
j) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
k) AnyOther.... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (A) (2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
A. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
¢) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Govi(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
g) Flis 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B) (1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2. Non Institutions
a) Bodies Comp.
(I) Indian
(i) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Individuals
() Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capitaluptoRs. 1lakh
(i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capitalin excess of 1 lakh 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Others (Specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
C. Sharesheld by Custodian
for GDRs&ADRs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grand Tofal (A+B+C) 0 |30005000 30005000( 100 0 | 30005000 30005000, 100 0
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ii. Shareholding of Promoters

Sr| Shareholder's Name Shareholding atthe Shareholding atthe end
No beginning of the year oftheyear
No.of %oftotal | % ofshares | No.of %oftotal | %ofShare |%change
Shares Shares Pledged/ Shares Shares Pledge/ | inShare
ofthe |encumbered ofthe |encumbered | holding
company | tototal company tototal during
Shares Shares the year
1. |New Okhla Industrial
DevelopmentAuthority |2,10,03,500 70 0 2,10,03,500" 70 0 0
2. | Greater Noida Industrial
DevelopmentAuthority | 90,01,500* 30 0 90,01,500** 30 0 0
Total 30005000 100 0 0

* Three shares are held by three individuals respectively as a Nominee of New Okhla Industrial Development Authority

**Two shares are held by two individuals respectively as a Nominee of Greater Noida Industrial

Development Authority.
iil.

Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change): There
is no change in the promoter's shareholding during the FY 2017-18.

It is relevant to mention here that during the FY 2018-19, the Company has allotted
687,62,000 equity shares of ¥ 100 each to the Government of India (Gol) in the name of
President. Thus, Gol is also a promoter of the Company from FY 2018-19.

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters
and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): NIL
All the shares of the Company are held by the promoters of the Company.
V. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: NIL
V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(% in Lakhs)
Secured Loans Unsecured | Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year
(i) Principal Amount 58,000.00 - - 58,000.00
(i) Interestdue butnot paid - - - -
(iii) Interestaccrued but notdue - 2 - -
Total(l+11+11) 58,000.00 - - 58,000.00
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
- Addition 55,000.00 - - 55,000.00
- Reduction
NetChange 55,000.00 - - 55,000.00
Indebtedness attheend of
the financial year
i)  Principal Amount 113,000.00 - - =
ii) Interestdue butnot paid
iii) Interestaccrued but notdue
Total (I+11+111) 113,000.00 - - 113,000.00
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Vi. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

(A) Remunerationto Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager

Sl. |Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD /Manager Total
No. Mr. Alok Tandon Amount
1. |Grosssalary NIL -

(a) |Salary as per provisions contained in
Section 17(1) of the Income-taxAct, 1961

(b) |Value of perquisites ufs 17(2) of Income-

taxAct, 1961

(c) |Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)

of Income-tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

2

3. |Sweat Equity
4. |Commission

- |as % of profit

- |others, specify

5. |Others, please specify

6. |Total (A)

Ceiling as perthe Act

(B) Remuneration to other directors

(Amount in ¥)

Particulars of Name of Director | Name of Director Total
Remuneration Mr. G.P. Garg Mr. K.P. Singh Amount
Independent Directors

- Fee for attending board 1,05,000.00 1,20,000.00 2,25,000.00
committee meetings

- Commission NIL NIL NIL

- Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL
Total (1) 1,05,000.00 1,20,000.00 2,25,000.00
Other Non-Executive Directors NIL NIL NIL

- Fee for attending board

committee meetings

- Commission

- Others, please specify

(Executive Director)

Total (2) NIL NIL NIL
Total (B) = (1+2) 1,05,000.00 1,20,000.00 2,25,000.00
Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act
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(C) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD

(Amount in )

S. |Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No. CEO| Company| CFO Total
Secretary
1. |Grosssalary
(a) | Salary as per provisions contained in - 3,26,667 |16,41,828 -
Section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) | Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of - NIL 2,85,642 -
Income-taxAct, 1961
(c) |Profitsinlieu of salary under section 17(3) NIL NIL
of Income-tax Act, 1961
2. |Stock Option - NIL NIL B
3. [SweatEquity - NIL NIL -
4. |Commission
- | as % of profit - NIL NIL -
- |others, specify
5. |Others, please specify - NIL NIL -
6. [Total - 3,26,667 |19,59,377 -
Vil. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL
Type Section Brief Details of | Authority | Appeal
ofthe description| Penalty/ [RD/NCLT/ | made,
Companies Punishment/ Court] ifany
Act Compounding (give
fees imposed details)
A. Company
Penalty - - - E
Punishment - - - -

Compounding -

B. Directors

Penalty -

Punishment -

Compounding -

C. OtherOfficers
In Default

Penalty £

Punishment -

Compounding -

Alok Tandon

DIN: 01841717
Managing Director
House No.1, Sec-14A,
Gautam Buddha Nagar,
Noida 201301, UP

Nisha Wadhawan
Company Secretary
Membership No. 51239
43/18, GF, Block-43,
Ashok Nagar, Delhi-110018

Mukund Kumar Sinha

DIN: 06774923

Nominee Director

Add:QTR-N-61,

Type 5-B Sector 10, Nivedita Kunj,
R.K Puram New Delhi-110022

Purn Deo Upadhyay
Chief Financial Officer
Tower-C-1, Flat No. 1802, Cleo County,

Sec-121, near Sec-70, Gautam Budhh Nagar,

Noida 201301, UP
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(/' SAMPRK & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
Noida Metro Rail Corporation Limited
NOIDA

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Noida Metro Rail
Corporation Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March31, 2018,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect other preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position ,financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act., read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended there after. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

H.O.: 102-103/106/302, Neelkanth House, S-524, School Block, Shakarpur, Delhi-110092
Ph.: 011-22482285, 011-43041646, Mob.: +91-9811180015, 9811180016, E-mail: rpcca@rediffmail.com, Web.: www.samprk.com
B.0.: F-309, Parshvanath Prestige, Expressway, Sector-93A, Noida, Uttar Pradesh-201301
Flat No. 219, Coral Apartment, Ramprastha Green, Vaishali Extn., Pocket-1, Sector-7, Ghaziabad-201012, U.P.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its loss including
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Other Matters

1.

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017
and the transition date opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2016 included in these
standalone IndAS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory
financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as
amended) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rules,2014 audited by us for the year ended March 31, 2017 vide report dated
23.09.2017 and by our predecessor auditor for the year ended at March 31, 2016 vide
report date19.09.2016 have been restated to comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) and included in this statement as corresponding financial information.
Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

As per the clause 1 of the Articles of Association of the company, the Company is a
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)in the nature of a Joint Venture with contribution of 50:50
Government of India (GOl)and Government of Uttar Pradesh (GoUP).

The Share Capital of the company is held by NOIDA Authority and Greater NOIDA
Authority in the proportion of 2,10,03,500 and 90,01,500 shares respectively which are
the autonomous bodies of the state government. Further Central Government has given
share application money for 6,87,62,000 shares, allotment of which has been made
during the financial year 2018-19. Hence shareholding is not in proportionin accordance
with provisions as per Articles of Association.

Our report is not qualified in respect of this matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended there after;

According to information and explanation given to us, the company is a Government
Company; therefore, provision of the section 164(2) of the act is not applicable pursuant
to the Gazette Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 05.06.2015 issued by Government of
India however written representations have been received from the directors as on
March31,2018 ,and none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being
appointed as a director in terms of section164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure2” to
this report;

As required by the Sec 143(5) of the Act, the Comptroller and Auditor General of India has
issued directions and sub-directions and we have audited the accounts in accordance to
the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made there under. A separate report showing compliance of such directions and sub
directions is given in Annexure 3 to this report.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)Rules,2014,as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For SAMPRK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 013022N

CA Manoj Kumar Bhargava
(Partner)

Membership No. 095441
Place: Delhi

Date: 25,09.2018
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ANNEXURE 1 TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Noida Metro Rail Corporation
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018]

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its fixed
assets.

(b) During the year, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management. As
explained to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification as
compared to the book records. In our opinion the frequency of verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its activities.

{c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company do not own any
immovable property and there are no title deeds in the name of the company. The
land on which Metro Rail Project is constructed and for staff quarters is provided by
NOIDA and Greater NOIDA Authority on lease for which agreement has been
entered into financial year 2018-19.

As there is no Inventory. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

As informed, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) & 3(iii)(c) of
the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the Company
has not advanced any loan, investment, guarantee or security to any person as specified
under sections 185 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has not advanced any
loan, guarantee or security to any person within the meaning of section 186 of the
Companies Act 2013. The company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the
Companies Act 2013 with regards to investment made.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of Sections
73to 76 of the Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under.

The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records as specified
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the company.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income tax, GST, sales tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added
tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforesaid
dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of

income tax, GST, sales tax, service tax, excise duty, customs duty, value added tax
and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
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(viii) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial

(ix)

(x)

(i)

(xii)

institution. The company does not have any loans or borrowings from any banks,
government or debenture holders during the year.

The Company has applied the amount of term loans and amounts of share application
money received during the year, for the purpose it was raised. Further Thecompany did
not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (as debt
instruments) during the year.

During the course of our examination of the books of accounts and records carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has paid/provided
for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination

of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination

(xv)

of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or party convertible debentures during the year under
review. However the company received share application money of Rs.68,762 Lacs from
Central Government for further issue of shares and provisions of Section 42 were not
applicable on the same andaccordingly, clause 3(xiv) of the Companies (Auditors Report)
Order, 2016 is complied with.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of

IndiaAct 1934.

For SAMPRK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 013022N

CAManoj Kumar Bhargava
(Partner)

Membership No. 095441
Place: Delhi

Date: 25.09.2018

36



ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Noida Metro Rail Corporation
Limited on the financial statements forthe year ended March 31, 2018]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Noida Metro Ralil
Corporation (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required underthe Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that the transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control on the financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For SAMPRK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 013022N

CAManoj Kumar Bhargava
(Partner)

Membership No. 095441
Place: Delhi

Date: 25.09.2018
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ANNEXURE 3 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in clause g in serial no. 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements'in the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Noida Metro
Rail Corporation Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 for reply

on directions and sub-directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India]

Directions

Reply

1. Whether the company has clear title/lease
deeds for freehold and leasehold
respectively. If not please state the area

of freehold and leasehold iand for which
title/lease deeds are not available

The company does not have any title deed in

respect of any property. However Agreement

for lease in respect of the following properties/

land have been entered into the next financial

year:

a) inrespectofland underthe Metro Corridor

b) inrespectofland for staff quarters

¢) inrespectof office premises at block I,
Ganga Shopping Complex, Sec-29, Noida

2. Whetherthere are any cases of waiver/
write off of debts/loan/interest etc. if yes,
the reason there for and the amount involved

Interest receivable on flexi account was short
received during the year due to pre maturities
amounting to Rs.0.61 Lac and was written off

3. Whether proper records are maintained
for inventories lying with third parties and
assets received as gift/grant(s)

from Government or other authorities.

Record has been maintained by the company in
respect of inventories lying with third parties.

No asset has been received as gift/grant from
Government or other authorities

Record of assets of metro project (on turnkey
basis) is maintained by DMRC and the projectis
executed by DMRC

Sub-Directions

1. Whether the system in vogue for
identification of projects to be taken up
under Public Private Partnershipisinline
with guidelines/policies of the
Government? Comment on deviation if any

Not applicable

2. Whether system for monitoring the
execution of works vis-a-vis the milestones
stipulated inthe agreement is in existence
and the impact of cost escalation, if any,
revenues/losses from contracts, etc. have
been properly accounted for in the books.

There is a system for monitoring the executive
of works vis-a-vis the milestones stipulated in
the agreement. The milestone for Metro
Projectwas 18.04.2018, which have extended
to 17.12.2018. There is no direct cost escalation
due to extension of the milestone.

3. Whether funds received /receivable for
specific schemes from central/ State
agencies were properly accounted for/
Utilized. List the cases of deviations.

Yes, no deviation has been found.

4. Whether the bank guarantee have been
validated in time

Yes

5. Comment on the confirmation of balances
of trade receivables, trade payables, term
deposits, bank accounts and cash obtained.

Trade Payables: Generally payments have
been made bill wise and confirmation of major
accounts have been obtained.

Confirmation of balances of trade receivables,
term depaosits, bank accounts and cash has
been obtained.
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Noida Metro Rail Corpo

ration Lid.

(A joint venture of Gowt. of India and Govt. of U.P)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars Note | AsAtMarch | AsAtMarch | As atApril
No. 31,2018 31,2017 31,2016

l. ASSETS

(1) NON-CURRENTASSETS

(a) Property, Plantand Equipments 14 82.50 80.82 17.25

(b) Capital Work In Progress 2 3,04,245.06 | 1,81,5654.19| 56,335.28

(c) OtherIntangible Assets 1.2 0.55 - -

(d) Financial Assets

() Loans 3 - ~ -

(i) OtherFinancial Assets 4 1.02 - -

(e) Deferred TaxAssets (Net) - - 46.66

() OtherNon CurrentAssets 5 8,244.26 8,656.60 17,194.89

(2) CURRENTASSETS

(a) FinancialAssets

(i) Trade Receivable 6 0.32 1.23 -

(i) Cashand Cash Equivalents 7 41,482.67 15,890.79 | 11,038.73

(iii) Loans 8 - - -

(iv) OtherFinancial Assets 9 25.22 20.41 -

(b) CurrentTaxAssets 10 10.96 9.98 -

(c) OtherCurrentAssets 11 1,983.82 244 60 -

TOTAL 3,56,076.38 | 2,06,458.63 | 84,632.81

Il. EQUITYAND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 12 30,005.00 30,005.00 | 30,005.00
(b) OtherEquity 13 2,03,851.09 | 1,14,699.66 | 52,404.73
LIABILITIES

(1) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14 1,13,000.00 | 58,000.00 -

(i) OtherFinancial Liabilities 15 - - -

(b) Provisions 16 7.60 - -

(c) OtherNon Current Liabilities - - -

(2) CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Trade Payables 17 398.05 353.18 -

(i) OtherFinancial Liabilities 18 8,015.41 3,089.27 1,968.97

(b) Provisions 20 0.59 - 31.92

(c) Other Current Liabilities 19 798.64 311.52 222.20

TOTAL 3,56,076.38 | 2,06,458.63 | 84,632.81

Significant Accounting Policies 27

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement 28

As per Our Report Attached.
For Samprk & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN-013022N

Name: Manoj Kumar Bhargava

Partner

M.No.- 095441
Date: 25.09.2018
Place: Delhi

For and on behalf of the Board

Alok Tandon
Managing Director
DINNo: 01841717

Ms. Nisha Wadhawan
Company Secretary
M.No: 51239

Vinay Kumar Singh

Director
DIN No.: 06497700
P D Upadhyay

Chief Financial Officer

Block-Ill, 3rd Floor, Ganga Shopping Complex, Sector-29, Neida 201301, Disit. Gautam Budh Nagor, Ph.: 0120-4344483/84
Fax: 0120-4344485, E-mail: nmrenoida@gmail.com, Website: www.nmrenoida.com, CIN: U60231UP2014SGC066849
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note Forthe Year Forthe Year
No. endedMarch| endedMarch
31,2018 31,2017
INCOME
i) Revenue from Operations 21 981.31 138.91
i) OtherIncome 22 3,591.76 2,220.27
TOTAL INCOME 4,573.07 2,359.18
EXPENDITURE
i) Operating Expenses 23 4,112.95 1,135.30
ii) Employees'Benefits Expenses 24 149.13 116.90
i) Finance Cost 25 0.62 1.49
iv) Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 1.1&1.2 14.26 6.93
v) Other Expenses 26 790.05 1,764.31
Total Expenditure 5,067.00 3,024.92
Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional ltem & Tax (493.93) (665.74)
Exceptional ltem - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (493.93) (665.74)
Tax Expenses
i) Income Tax 0.00 0.00
i) Deferred Tax 0.00 (46.66)
Profit/(Loss) During The Year (493.93) (712.40)
Other Comprehensive Income
i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans - -
Less Deferred Tax relating to item that will not be
reclassified to Profit & Loss - - -
ii) Items that will be reclassified to Profit & Loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) forthe Year - E
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the Year (493.93) (712.40)
Earning Per Share(Equity Share of Rs.100/each)
Basic(InRs.) (1.65) (2.37)
Diluted (InRs.) (1.65) (2.37)
Significant Accounting Policies 27
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement 28
As per Our Report Attached.
For Samprk & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN-013022N
Name: Manoj Kumar Bhargava Alok Tandon Vinay Kumar Singh
Partner Managing Director Director
M.No.- 095441 DINNo: 01841717 DIN No.: 06497700
Date: 25.09.2018 Ms. Nisha Wadhawan P D Upadhyay
Place: Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M.No: 51239
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NOIDA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2018

(Rs.in Lakhs)
Particular AsatMarch | AsatMarch | AsatApril
1,2018 31,2017 1,2016
Equity Shares Capital
Opening Balance 30,005.00 | 30,005.00 | 30,005.00
Change in Capital during the year - - -
Closing Balance 30,005.00 | 30,005.00 | 30,005.00
Other Equity
A. Deffered Income
Opening Balance 1,15,5658.85| 52,551.53 | 4,500.00
Add Amount Received during the year 24,015.00 | 63,500.00 | 47,400.00
Add Interest received on Grant - 485,72 651.53
Less amountrealesed to Statement of Profit
and Loss Account on Utilisation for City Bus Service| -3,131.63 | -978.39 -
Closing Balance 1,36,442.22| 1,15,558.85 52,551.53
B. Retained Earnings
Opening Balance -859.19 -146.80 -181.50
Profit for the Year -493.93 -712.40 34.70
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year -493.93 -712.40 34.70
Closing Balance -1,353.13 | -859.19 -146.80
C. Share Application Money Pending Allotment
Opening Balance - - -
Add Amount Received during the year 68,762.00 - -
Less Adjustment during the year = = i
Closing Balance 68,762.00 - -
Significant Accounting Policies 27
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement 28
As per Our Report Attached.
For Samprk & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

FRN-013022N

Name: Manoj Kumar Bhargava Alok Tandon Vinay Kumar Singh

Partner Managing Director Director

M.No.- 095441 DIN No: 01841717 DIN No.: 06497700

Date: 25.09.2018 Ms. Nisha Wadhawan P D Upadhyay

Place: Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M.No: 51239
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2 Capital Workin Progress

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at Addition/ Total | Capitalized| Asat
April Adjustments| during March
1,2017 during theyear | 31,2018
the year
Expenses on Noida-Greater
Noida Metro Corridor
Expenses on Metro Corridor 1,58,423.60 | 1,05,372.35 | 2,63,795.95 - 2,63,795.95
Electric Connection Charges 329.98 319.24 649.21 - 649.21
ProjectManagement Consultancy Fees | 21,055.00 | 10,757.68 | 31,812.68 - 31,812.68
Intereston Loan Capitalised 778.71 5,919.66 6,698.37 - 6,698.37
Irigation Model Study 54.00 = 54.00 s 54.00
Professional Charges 9.76 - 9.76 - 9.76
Environmental Clearance 16.56 16.56 - 16.56
Certification Charges 637.03 - 637.03 - 637.03
DOE Fees 5.00 - 5.00 - 5.00
Sub-Consultancy Fees 12.00 - 12.00 . 12.00
Independent Quality Monitoring Agency 232.55 223.54 456.09 - 456.09
Salaries - 92.88 92.88 - 92.88
Depot/Station Fumniture - 5.54 5.54 - 5.54
Total 1,81,554.19 | 1,22,690.87 | 3,04,245.06 3,04,245.06

Explanatory Note for Note no.2

Tangible Assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital Work in
Progress”, all expenses such as (consultancy fees etc) which are specifically attributable and also includes
borrowing costs on loans taken for the project.

(Rs.in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat Addition/ Total | Capitalized | Asat
April  |Adjustments| during March
1,2016 during theyear | 31,2017
the year
EXPENSES ON NOIDA- GREATER
NOIDAMETRO CORRIDOR
Expenses on Metro Corridor 42,820.65 | 1,15,602.95| 1,58,423.60 . 1,58,423.60
Electric Connection Charges 296.98 33.00 329.98 - 329.98
Project Management Consultancy Fees 13,211.00 7,844.00 | 21,055.00 - 21,055.00
Interest on Loan Capitalised - 778.71 778.71 - 778.71
Irrigation Model Study - 54.00 54.00 - 54.00
Professional Charges 9.76 9.76 - 9.76
Environmental Clearance - 16.56 16.56 - 16.56
Certification Charges - 637.03 637.03 - 637.03
DOE Fees 5.00 5.00 - 5.00
Sub-Consultancy Fees - 12.00 12.00 - 12.00
Independent Quality Monitoring Agency 6.65 225.89 232.55 - 232.55
Total 56,335.28 | 1,25,218.91 | 1,81,554.19 . 1,81,554.19

Explanatory Note

Tangible Assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital Work in
Progress”, all expenses such as (consultancy fees etc) which are specifically atfributable and also includes
borrowing costs on loans taken for the project.
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3 NonCurrent-Financial Assets -Loans
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat As atMarch As at April
March 31,2018] 31,2017 1,2016
Advance to Related Parties (Secured Considered Good) - - -
Add Interest accrued on Advances to related parties
Less Fare value adjustment - Advance to related parties - - &
Advance to Staff (Secured Considered Good) - - -
Add Interest accrued on Advances to Staff
L ess Fare value adjustment - Advance to Staff - - -
Total - - -
4 Non Current - Financial Assets - Others
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat AsatMarch AsatApril
March31,2018| 31,2017 1,2016

(i) Term Depositmore that 12 months 1.00 - -
Accrued Intereston FDR 0.02 - -
Total 1.02 - -

5 Non Current - Others

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat As atMarch As atApri
| March 31,2018{ 31,2017 1,2016

(i) Advance for Capital Assets 7,889.76 | 8,512.10 17,122.49
(Usecured Considered Good)

(i) Security Deposit 354.50 144 .50 72.40
Total 8,244.26 8,656.60 17,194.89
Explanatory Note for note no. 5

1. The Advance to DMRC is according to the agreement as equal to TDS deducted on project
management consultancy fee & amount paid for construction of corridor. This advance shall be
reimbursed or adjusted within the period of three years from the date of making advance. This
advance has been recognized as Non-Current assets under the head “Long term loan and
Advances”.

2. Security Deposit of Rs. 144,50 Lakhs on account of electricity deposit with EEEUUD |l Noida in the
name of Delhi Metro Rail Corporation, the Contractor for Metro Project and Rs. 0.10 Lakh with BSNL.

6 Trade Receivable

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars. Asat As atMarch As atApril
March31,2018| 31,2017 1,2016
Trade Receivable 0.32 1.23 -

(Unsecured Considered Good)

Amount Due from Directors or Officers of the company-
Rs. NIL (Previous Year Rs. NIL)

Amount due from Companies or Firms in which
directors are interested as directors, members or
partners- Rs NIL (Previous Year Rs. NIL)

Total 0.32 1.23 -
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Notes forming Part of Balance Sheet

7 Cash & CashEquivalents

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Asat AsatMarch AsatApril

March 31,2018] 31,2017 1,2016

a) Cashand Cash Equivalents

CashinHand 0.00 0.02 0.01
Cashwith UPSRTC 2.80 1.90 -
Imperest Balance - 0.25 -
Bank balances (with scheduled Banks) - -
Current Accounts - -
Indusind Bank CurrentAccount 1.00 1.00 -
Yes Bank Escrow Account 58.02 15.84 B
State Bank of India 538.45 - -
Saving Accounts - -
Indusind BankSaving Account 40,063.75 | 15,250.27 -
Yes Bank (city Bus Account) 6.41 357.41 B
Yes Bank Ltd 782.60 186.82 -
ICICI Bank - 4.59 125.86
HDFC Bank 7.69 - 10,760.97
Accrued Interest on Saving Bank Account 21.85 - 151.89
Flexi Deposit Less Book Overdraft 72.58 -
Others - -
Paytm Account - 0.12 -
Total 41,482.67 | 15,890.79 | 11,038.73 |

Explanatory Note for note no. 7

Book Overdraft is over issue of cheques in the saving account. The same are encashed by the bank
out of the credits from the flexi deposit account and hence has been adjusted with the balance in flexi

depositaccount.

8 OtherCurrent-Loans

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Asat
March 31,2018

AsatMarch
31,2017

AsatApril |
1,2016

Advance to Related Parties (Secured Considered Gooy) -

Add Interest accrued on Advances to related parties
Less Fare value adjustment - Advance to related parties

Advance to Staff (Secured Considered Good)
Add Interest accrued on Advances to Staff
Less Fare value adjustment - Advance to Satff

Total

9 Current Financial Assets - Others

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Asat

| March 31,2018

As atMarch
31,2017

AsatApril
1,2016

Advances Recoverable in cash orin kind
Amount Due from Directors or Officers of the
company- Rs.97473/- (Previous Year Rs. NIL)
Amount due from Companies or Firms in which
directors are interested as directors, members or
partners- Rs NIL (Previous Year Rs. NIL)

25.22

20.41

Total

25.22

20.41

47



() NMRC

Explanatory Note for Note no. 9

Shortterm advances above includes an amount of Rs.7112.26 Lakhs {Previous Year Rs. 15875.39)
paid to DMRC for the Construction of Metro Corridor but has not been utilized by the DMRC.

10 Current Tax Assets (Net)

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat As at March As at April
March31,2018] 31,2017 1,2016
Income Tax Payments 10.96 9.98 -
Total 10.96 9.98 -
11 Other Current Assets
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat As atMarch As at April
March 31,2018] 31,2017 1,2016
Accrued Interest on Flexi Account/FDR 9.07 -
Income Accrued 0.32 - -
Interest Receivable from Security Deposit 2,76 = =
Amount Recoverable 0.03 0.69 -
Service Tax Credits - 119.07 B
GST Credits/Cash Ledger 800.86 -
Advance Training Charges 763.24 - -
Prepaid Expenses 416.61 115.77 -
Total 1,983.82 244.60 -
12 Equity Share Capital
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at AsatMarch As atApril
March31,2018] 31,2017 1,2016
Authorised
1000,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 100 each 1,00,000.00| 1,00,000.00 | 1,00,000.00
(March 31, 2017: 1000,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
300,05,000 equity Shres of Rs. 100 each 30,005.00 | 30,005.00 30,005.00
(March 31, 2017: 3,00,05,000 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Reconciliation of number of Shares Asat AsatMarch As at April
March 31,2018| 31,2017 1,2016
Equity Shares
Opening Balance 3,00,05,000| 3,00,05,000 5,000.00
No. of Shares Issued/Subscribed during the year - - 3,00,00,000
Closing balance 3,00,05,000(3,00,05,000 | 3,00,05,000
Details of Shares held by Shareholder holding more than 5% Asat As atMarch As at April
March 31,2018] 31,2017 1,2016
New Okhla Industrial Development Authority* 2,10,03,500|2,10,03,500 | 2,10,03,500
70.00% 70.00% 70.00%
Greater Noida Industrial Development Authority** 90,01,500 | 90,01,500 80,01,500
30.00% 30.00% 30.00%
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" Includes 3 shares (Previous Year 3 Shares) by others as nominee

** Includes 2 shares (Previcus Year 2 Shares) by others as nominee

Notes:

The company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par having value of
Rs.100 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share

All Shares carry equal rights wrtdividends

There being no preferential shares, in the event of liquidation the distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

14 Long Term Borrowings

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat As atMarch AsatApril
March31,2018] 31,2017 1,2016

Interest Bearing Loan from NCR Planning Board for Noida-Greater 33,900.00 | 17,400.00 -
Greater Noida Metro Corridor

(Against Bank Guarantee from Greater NOIDAAuthority)
Interest Bearing Loan from NCR Planning Board for Noida-Greater 79,100.00 | 40,600.00 -
Greater Noida Metro Corridor

(Against Bank Guarantee from NOIDAAuthority)

Rate of Interest 7%

(Incentive/Rebate of 0.25% to be allowed on timely Payments)
Loan Repayablein 16 yearly installments, starting from 2021-22
Defaultin Repayment-NIL

Loan received from NCR Planning Board are considered to be at fair
value

Total 1,13,000.00| 58,000.00 -

Explanatory Note for Note 14:
Disclosure inrespect of Long Term Borrowing:

The NCR Planning Board has committed to provide a Total Term Loan of Rs. 158700/- Lakhs for
implementation of Project of Metro Connection between Noida and Greater Noida (29.707 KM). The
NCR Planning Board has sanctioned and disbursed a sum of Rs.113000/- Lakh up to 31/03/2018 and
abalance of Rs. 45700/- Lakhs is still to be disbursed by NCR Planning Board to the company.

15 Non Current Other Financial Liabilities

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Asat AsatMarch AsatApril
March31,2018] 31,2017 1,2016

Deposits/retention Money

Less Fair Value Adjustments - Deposits/Retention Money - - -

Total - - -

16 Non Current Provisions

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at AsatMarch AsatApril
March 31,2018] 31,2017 1,2016
(a) Employee Benefits
i) LeaveEncashments 5.61 - -
i) Gratuity 1.99 - -
Total 7.60 - -
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17 Trade Payables

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Asat As atMarch As at April
March31,2018] 31,2017 1,2016
Total Outstanding Dues of Micro and Small Scale Industrial - - -
Undertaking (Due over 30 days NIL)
Total Outstanding Dues of Medium Scale Industrial Undertaking - - -
(Due over 30 days NIL)
Others 398.05 353.18 -
Total 398.05 353.18 -
18 Other Financial Liabilities
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat As atMarch As at April
March 31,2018 31,2017 1,2016
Deposits/Retention Money from Contractors and others 50.36 1.85 6.00
Less: Fair Value Adjustments for Deposits/Retention Money - - -
50.36 1.85 6.00
Sundry Creditors Constructions - Others 5,199.66 | 2,380.17 1,961.00
Interest accrued but notdue on loan (NCR Planning Board) 2,754.32 700.84 -
Amount Payable for Employees 11.07 6.41 1.97
Total 8,015.41 3,089.27 1,968.97
19 Other Current Liabilities
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat As atMarch As atApril
March31,2018] 31,2017 1,2016
Other Creditors 94.56 161.93 187.41
Advance Royalty 423.73 - B
Statutory Liabilities 239.46 128.29 31.50
Expenses Payable 40.89 20.30 3.29
Deferred Fair Valuation Gain - Deposit/Retention Money - - -
Total 798.64 311.52 222.20
20 Provisions
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat AsatMarch As at April
| March31,2018| 31,2017 1,2016
(a) Employee Benefits
i) Leave Encashments 0.59 - -
ii) Gratuity 0.00 - -
Total (a) 0.59 - -
(b) Others
i) IncomeTax - - 31.92
Total (b) - - 31.92
Grand Total (a+b) 0.59 - 31.92
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21 Revenue From Operations

From City Bus Operations
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Forthe yearended Forthe yearended
on 31.03.2018 on 31.03.2017
City Bus Collection 968.84 132.33
Hybird Commission an 0.40
Rental for Land 4.44 1.62
Penalty & Other Charges 4.92 4.57
Total 981.31 138.91
22 OtherIncome
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Forthe year ended Forthe year ended
on 31.03.2018 on 31.03.2017
Grant For City Bus Service 3,131.63 978.39
Foreign Currency Fluctuation - 0.00
Documentation Fees - -
Penalty from Contractor - -
Tender Processing Fees - 1.00
Application Fee Received - 598.45
RTlfees - 0.00
Sale of Tender form 3.69 8.49
Sale of Scrap 0.02 -
Misc Income 0.12 0.15
Amount Write Back 0.03 -
Fair Valuation Gain - Deposit/Retention Money
Interestincome
Saving Bank 453.49 542.47
Fixed deposit /Flexi Deposits 0.02 91.31
Other 2.76 -
Security Deposit due to Fair Valuation
Total 3,591.76 2,220.27

Explanatory Note

Total Grant of Rs. 1510.00 Lakhs has been received for the operations of City Bus Service, revenue has
been booked to the extent of loss on such operations.

23 Operating Expenses

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Forthe yearended Forthe year ended
on31.03.2018 on 31.03.2017
Operation & Maintenance Expenses 3,835.27 1,022.57
Project Management Charges 245.58 91.86
Consultancy Expenses - 5.73
Security Expenses 26.29 5.03
City Bus Inaugeration Expenses - 5.49
Incentive Payment - 0.00
Swachcha Bharat Cess Expenses on
City Bus Operation Payments 5.81 4.62
Total 4,112.95 1,135.30
24 Employees Benefit Expenses
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Forthe year ended Forthe year ended
on 31.03.2018 on 31.03.2017
i) Salaries, wages &Allowances 132.79 115.60
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ii) Employers Contribution to PF, ESI

including administration fees 5.80 0.81
i) ShiftingAllowance - 0.05
iv) Medical Expenses 0.76 0.44
v) Gratuity 243 -
vi) Leave Travel concession 0.37 -
vii) Leave Encashment 6.98 -
vii) Employee Cost due to Fair Valuation of Loans - -

Total 149.13 116.90
25 Finance Costs

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Forthe yearended Forthe yearended
on 31.03.2018 on 31.03.2017
Interest on Income Tax/TDS 0.44 072
Interest on Service Tax Payments 0.18 0.76
Total 0.62 1.49
26 Other Expenses
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Forthe yearended For the yearended
on 31.03.2018 on 31.03.2017

Auditors Remuneration 4.00 4.02
Advertisement Expenses 24 .87 52.65
Bank charges 0.04 0.00
Newspapers, Books & Periodicals 0.13 0.50
Consulting Fee- NOIDA & Gr Noida Bus Service - -
Consultancy Fees for Operation &
Maintenance Expenses 355.90 460.00
Festival Expenses 1.57 0.26
Inauguration and Shifting Expenses - -
Internal Audit Fees 0.50 0.60
Insurance 1.33 0.09
Staff Recruitment Expenses 137.42 1,017.62
Legal Expenses 0.51 0.27
Misc Expenses 773 11.67
Membership Fees - 5.75
Power Charges 7.30 7.76
Printing & Stationery 3.28 7.08
Professional Fees 65.45 136.29
Postage & Courier 0.20 0.21
Public Meeting Expenses 2,99 8.02
Repair & Maintenance Expenses 4,37 1.17
Rent for staff accommodation 542 4.53
Royalty Paid 245 -
Sitting Fees 2.25 1.80
Software Fees (Office 365) - -
Service Tax/ Swachacha Bharat Cess Expenses 943 2.96
GST Expenses 102.84 -
Communication Expenses 277 3.89
Training Expenses - 1.28
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 33.21 21.17
Vehicle Hiring Charges -
Vehicle Maintenance Expenses 13.29 6.42
Amount Write off 0.61 -
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 0.09
License Fee 0.05 0.20
Website Expenses 0.08 8.11
Total 790.05 1,764.31
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Note No. 27- COMPANY INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

A.

1) 1.

COMPANY INFORMATION
Reporting Entity

Noida Metro Rail Corporation Limited (referred to as “the company”) is domiciled and
incorporated in India (CIN No.U60231UP2014S5GC066849).

The company was formed on the basis that Central Government and UP State
Government will provide the equal equity participation. However Noida and Greater
Noida Authority has provided the equity of Rs. 30005 Lakhs till 31.03.2018 and Central
Government has provided Rs. 68762 Lakhs till this date for which allotment has been
made in the next financial year 2018-19.

The registered office of the company is situated at Block |11, 3rd Floor, Ganga Shopping
Complex, Sector 29, Noida 201301. The company is a SPV established for the purpose
of planning, building and establishing of Mass transit and other urban transport and
people mover systems of all types and disciplines. The company has presently
undertaken two major projects namely Metro Rail between Noida and Greater Noida
and City Bus service between Noida & Greater Noida and in the cities of Noida and
Greater Noida. Noida Metro Rail project is in development stage and about to complete
by next financial year and City Bus Service project is in operation.

Basis of Preparation-Statement of Compliances

The financial statement of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed
under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, as notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, further the Guidance Notes/Announcements issued by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) are also considered wherever
applicable, as adopted consistently by the company. The company has uniformly
applied the accounting policies during the periods presented. These are the company’s
first Ind AS financial statements and Ind AS 101, first time adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards has been applied.

For all the periods upto and including 31st March 2017 the company had prepared its
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) in India, which includes, accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts Rules 2014 and the
Companies Act, 2013 (Collectively referred to as ‘Indian GAAP'). The company
followed the provisions of Ind AS 101 in preparing its opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as
of the date of transition, viz, 1st April 2016. Some of the Company'’s Ind AS Accounting
Policies used in opening balance sheet differed from its Indian GAAP Accounting
Policies applied as at 31st March 2016 and accordingly the adjustments were made to
restate the opening balances as per Ind AS. The resulting adjustments, arising from
events and transactions before the date of transition to Ind AS, were recognized directly
through retained earnings as at 1stApril 2016 as required by IndAS 101.
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2. i)

b)

a)
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Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for :-

a) Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value (refer accounting
policies regarding financial instruments) and

b) Defined benefit plans have been measured and method used for fair values are
discussed in notes to financial statements.

Use of Estimates and Management Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements are in conformity with Ind AS which requires
the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities on the
date of financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which
the results are crystallized.

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

Functional and Presentation Currency
These Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the company’s
financial currency.

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets are shown at its acquisition cost less
accumulated depreciation. Costs include all expenses incurred to bring the assets to its
present location and condition. Deposit works/ contracts are capitalized on completion
on the basis of statement of account or utilization certificate received from executing
agencies.

Land received on long term lease i.e. for 90 years without being given with ownership
rights is considered as operating lease.

Capital Work in Progress

Income pertaining to construction period such as interest income (other than from
temporary deployment of funds received by way equity, interest free subordinate debt
and grant), sale of tender documents, amount forfeited from contractor etc is adjusted
against the expenditure during construction period.

Administrative and General Overheads (net of income) directly attributed to project are
allocated in the ratio of assets capitalized to the total CWIP as at the end of the month of
commissioning.

Allocation of Interest During Construction Period

Interest During Construction (IDC) in respect of qualifying assets commissioned during
the year, is allocated in the ratio which the valuation of commissioned assets bear to the
qualifying CWIP.

. Depreciation/Amortisation

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment (other than capital work-in progress) is
provided under Straight Line basis so as to write off the cost of the assets after
considering 5% residual value over the useful lives, at the rates calculated on the basis
of useful lives specified in Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013.
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d)
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Intangible assets including software which is not an integral part of related hardware are
amortized on Straight Line Method over a period of legal right to use or 5 years
whicheveris earlier.

Depreciation on addition to an existing asset which forms integral part of main asset
capitalized earlier is charged over the remaining useful life of that asset.

Grants in Aid

Grants from Government/Non Government/Authorities towards capital expenditure for
creation of assets are initially shown as deferred income. These are subsequently
recognized as income each year over the useful life of relevant assets in proportion to
depreciation on those assets.

Grants from the Government/Non Government/Authorities towards payment for interest
during construction period is recognized as deferred income which are subsequently
recognized as income each year over the useful life of relevant assets in proportion to
depreciation on those assets and post construction period is shown in Statement of
Profitand Loss to the extent of amountincurred.

Grants from the Government/Non Government/Authorities toward revenue are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent of amount incurred net of
collections.

Retirement Benefits

Provident Fund

The company pays its provident fund contributions to Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner. The company pays fixed contribution to provident fund at Pre-
determined rate. The liability is recognized on accrual basis.

Gratuity

Every employee who renders continuous service of 5 years or more is entitled to get
gratuity @ 15 days salary (15/26%last drawn Basic Pay+ dearness pay+ Dearness
Allowance) for each completed year of service on superannuation, resignation,
termination, disablement or on death.

The disclosure of information as required under Ind AS 19 has been made in
accordance with the Actuarial Valuation and the liability is recognized on the basis of
Actuarial Valuation.

Leave

The company provides for earned leave benefits and half pay leave to the employees of
the company, which accrue annually at 30 days and 20 days respectively. Only the
leaves in the en-cashable leave account is en-cashable/accrued once in a calendar
yearwhile in service.

The liability on this account is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.
Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognized
immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the period in which they
occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to Profit or loss in subsequent period.
Inventory

Inventories including loose tools are valued at lower of cost (recognized at FIFO basis)

and netrealizable value. However the company did not hold any inventory.
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred. Cost in
connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not related to the acquisition of
qualifying asset are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of loan.
Borrowing costs allocated to and utilized for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period
upto the date of capitalization of such assets are recognized as cost of the asset.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized only when it can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to
expect ultimate collection.

Revenue from bus operations is recognized on the basis of accrual. Interest income is
accounted for on accrual basis.

Foreign Currency

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate prevailing
at the time of transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated at exchange rates at the
reporting date

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognized in statement of Profitand Loss in the yearin which these arises.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial
degree of estimation, if

i) the Company has a present obligation as a result of pastevent;;
i) aprobable outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is expected to settle

the obligation; and
iii) areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation;
iv) Intimation of present obligation for past event received up to the balance sheet.

Reimbursement by another party, expected in respect of expenditure required to
settle a provision, is recognized when it is virtual certain that reimbursement will be
received if obligation is settled.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of

i) Apresent obligation arising from past event, when it is not probable than an outfiow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

i) Apossible obligation unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets are neither disclosed nor recognized. Provisions of contingent
liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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Cash and Cash Equivalent

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily
convertible into known amount of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value and having original maturities of the three months or less from the date of
purchase, to be cash equivalents.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method as per Ind AS-7, whereby profit is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of the past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities of the company are segregated based on the available
information.

Impairment of Assets

Loss on impairment of assets is booked as per Ind AS 36. An asset is treated as
impaired when carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impaired loss
is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed if
there is a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Taxation

a) Income tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of Tthe income TaxAct,
1961,

b) Deferred taxis recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary
differences, between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred Tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting
date.

c) Income Tax Expense comprising current and deferred tax is recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in other comprehensive income (OCI) or equity in which case it is
recognized in OCl or equity.

d) Deferred Tax Assets is recognized only to the extent it is probable that tax benefits
will be realized in future.

Financial Instruments

Recognition, initial measurement and de-recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized and measured initially at fair
value adjusted by transaction costs, except for those financial assets which are
classified at fair value through Profit and Loss atinception.

Financial assets are derecognized when contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial assets expires, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and
rewards are transferred.

Financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or
expires.
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Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified into the
following categories upon initial recognition:

a) Financial assets at amortized costs using effective interest rates (EIR)
b) Financial assets at fair value through Profitand Loss
c) Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

All financial assets except for those at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) are
subject to review forimpairment at least at each reporting date.

Effective interestrate is calculated as follows:

Financial assets and Financial Liabilities which are interest bearing at market
rates:

EIRin these cases are equivalentinstrumentinterestrate.

For other financial assets and other financial liabilities not at fair value:
SBI-MCLR /Base Rate at the beginning of financial year for highest available period.
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method, except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at

FVTPL that are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognized in
Profitand Loss. All derivatives financial instruments are accounted for FVTPL.

Note No. 28

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contingent Liabilities

1.
As at asat asat
31.03.18 31.03.2017 | 01.04.2016
a) Claims against the company not
acknowledged as debts Nil Nil Nil
b) Other contingent liability

The company has taken loans from National Capital Region Planning Board. The terms
of payment of interest provides that the interest rate will be 7%, but if timely repayment of
interest and/or principal is made, then a rebate of 0.25% will be allowed. The
management of the company is of the opinion that all payments will be made in time and
also in respect of amount due during the financial year 2017-18 timely repayments have
been made. Considering the same the company has made a provision of interest after
considering the amount of rebate. So ifthe company do not make timely repayments the
company will be liable for the difference.

As at as at as at
31.03.18 31.03.2017 | 01.04.2016
Rs.InLacs | Rs.Inlacs Rs.Inlacs

The same is a contingent liability

and amountis as under: 103.08 28.84 NIL
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Commitments

Capital Commitments

NOIDA had entered into the MOU dated 18th October 2014 with DMRC for setting-up
Noida- Greater Noida Metro rail Project. This MOU was adopted by the company after
its incorporation. According to MOU company is committed to pay estimated project
cost of Rs. 5,10,300 Lakhs to DMRC. The project completion period is 3 year and 6
month. If project is delayed on part of NMRC, additional cost shall be borne by the
NMRC.

Further If state taxes are not exempted, the estimated total cost shall be Rs. 5,42,400
Lakhs. The estimated total cost of the project shall be payable to DMRC as and when
the funds are demanded by DMRC.

The company has still not got exemption of state taxes from state government.
Estimated amount of above agreement to be executed on capital account (net of
advances) and not provided for Rs. 2,72,314 Lakhs. (Rs. 3,57,719 Lakhs as on
31.03.2017 and Rs. 5,06,394 Lakhs as on 01.04.2016).

Other Commitments

a)

b)

NMRC Ltd. had entered into agreement dated 29th July 2016 with DMRC ILtd. for
carrying out operation & maintenance of its 29.707kms long Noida- Gr. Noida metro
corridor section having 21 elevated/ at grade stations starting from NOIDA Sector-71 &
terminating at Delta Depot Station.

According to agreement NMRC is committed to pay DMRC during the various phases of
the O&M agreement.

Phase-1(Pre Commercial Operation period)Fixed fee of Rs. 1000 Lakhs plus applicable
taxes, cess, duties etc. NMRC has paid a sum of Rs.1000 Lakhs plus taxes and balance
amount s still committed.

Commitment on this account is Nil as on 31.03.2018 (Rs. 500 Lakhs as on
31.03.2017 and Nil as on 01.04.2016).

Phase-2(Commercial Operation Period) Fixed fee of Rs. 300 Lakhs p.a. plus applicable
taxes, cess, duties etc.

Other Commitments
Estimated amount of other contracts Net of advances remaining to be executed

Rs.13,462 Lakhs as on 31.03.2018 (Rs. 42,414 Lakhs as on 31.03.2017 and Rs.10,620
Lakhs ason 01.04.2016).

Changes in Accounting Policy and impact thereof

The company has prepared financial statements in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS). The adjustments made by the company as on 01.04.2016 and
31.03.2017 due to application of Ind AS are quantified and explained in reconciliations
statements attached with notes to accounts.
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Besides above, the company has introduced accounting policies which are in line with
practices already being followed by the company. Further, certain other accounting
policies have been reworded/ reclassified for the purpose of better disclosure. These
changes in accounting policy have no impact on the Statement of Profit and Loss.

No amount was required to be spent as per provisions of Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 as the company has incurred losses.

Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-24 “Related Parties

Disclosures”

(0 List of related parties :

S.No. | Name of Related Party Relationship Nature of
Transactions
1. New Okhla Industrial Development Authority Share Holder having Grant Received
2, Greater Noida Industrial Development Authority substantial interest. Grant Received
Share Holder having
substantial interest.
3. Sh. Santosh Kumar Yadav (DIN 07214045)
Upto 24.04.2017 Managing Director Salary
4, Sh. Amit Mohan Prasad (DIN 07214025)
From 24.04.2017 and to 09.09.2017 Managing Director
8. Sh. AlokTandon (DIN 01841717) From 09.09.2017 Managing Director
6. Sh. Deepak Agarwal (DIN 07321522)
Remained director upto 05.06.2017 Director
T Sh. Debasish Panda (DIN 06479085)
Remained director from 05.06.2017 10 23.03.2018 Director
8. Sh. Rama Raman (DIN 01120265)
Remained director upto 05.06.2017 Director
9. Sh. Alok Sinha (DIN 02669662)
From 05.06.2017 10 19.03.2018 Director
10. Sh. Rahul Prasad Bhatnagar (DIN08468702)
Upto29.06.2017 Director
ki Sh. Pramod KumarAgrawal (DIN 07413769)
Upto 30.06.2017 Director
12. Sh. Krishan Kumar (DIN 07598400) Upto 10.07.2017 Director
13. Sh. Bal Krishan Triapathi (DIN 07907371)
From 11.07.2017 Director
14. Sh. Anup Chandra Pandey (DIN00267876)
From 07.09.2017 Director
15. Sh. Atal Kumar Rai (DIN 07962232)
From 10.10.2017 10 31.01.2018 Director
16. MsLeenu Sehgal (DIN 06813365) Upto 26.02.2018 Director
17. Kishore Pal Singh (DIN 00103165) Independent Director | Director Sitting
Fee
18. Gyan Prakash Garg (DIN 07213525) Independent Director | Director Sitting
Fee
19. Mr. PurnDeoUpadhyay C.F.O. Salary
20. Ms. Anupriya Garg Upto 16.08.2017 Company Secretary Salary
21. Ms. Nisha Wadhawan From 15.09.2017 Company Secretary Salary
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(ii)Transactions during the year with related parties :

S.No.| Nature of Transaction _ 2017-18 201617

(excluding Reimbursement) Rs.in Lakhs Rs.in Lakhs

1. Grant Received During the year
For Metro Project 17,000.00 62,500.00
For City Bus Service Project 3,100.00 1,000.00
Grant Received for payment of interest 3,915.00 0.00
Temporary Loans 5,000.00 0.00
Refund of Temporary Loans 5,000.00 0.00

2. Employees Benefit Expenses To KMP 30.20 55.11
Advance to KMP (on account of
deduction of TDS) 0.97 0.00

3. Sitting Fees 2.25 1.80

Grant Received during the year
Related Party F.Y.2017-18 F.Y.2016-17
Rs.In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs
Noida Authority 13,015.00 60,000.00
Greater Nodia Authority 11,000.00 3,500.00
(iii) Balances with related parties as at 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017 | 01.04.2016
a) Persononwhose advise, directions or NIL NIL NIL
instruction a director ora manageris
accustomed to act
b) KMP(Rs.inLakh) Dr.0.97 NIL NIL

6. Earning pershare

Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-33: Earning Per Share

Particulars 201718 2016-17
Profit (Loss) After Tax as per statement of Profit & Loss

(Rs. In Lakhs) (493.93) (712.40)
Weighted Average No of Equity Shares Outstanding

Basic 30005000 Shares | 30005000 Shares
Diluted 36410227 Shares| 30005000 Shares
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Basic Earnings Per Share

(Face Value of Rs. 100 pershare (1.65) (2.37)
Diluted Earnings Per Share

(Face Value of Rs. 100 per share (1.65) (2.37)

7. Deferred Tax

a) Thecompany has following deferred tax assets and liabilities :

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars FY17-18 FY 2016-17 FY 2015-16
Deferred TaxAssets 154.09 155.37 46.66
Deferred Tax NIL NIL NIL
Liability

Deferred Tax 154.09 155.37 46.66
Adjustment

b) The probability of earning sufficient future taxable profits are very low and hence the
provision for deferred tax assets is not recognized and accounted for in the books of
accounts as per the provisions of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 12 during the
year2017-18 and 2016-17.

8. Payments to Statutory Auditors

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. inlakhs
Statutory Audit Fees 3.00 3.00
TaxAudit Fees 1.00 1.00
. Re-imbursements
. Travelling Expenses Nil Nil
. Service Tax paid to previous auditors Nil 0.02
. Service Tax/GST (claimed as input) 0.72 0.72

9. Additional information pursuant to Schedule lll of the Companies Act, 2013:

Particulars 201718 201617
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
a) Valueofimports calculated on CIF basis
Raw Materials, Stores and Spares and
Capital Goods Nil Nil
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b) Expenditure on Foreign Currency on:
Tours & Travel 6.30 2.15

c) EarningsinForeign Exchange Nil Nil

d) Value of Components, Spare Parts &
Stores Consumed Nil Nil

(Note : The above do not include foreign exchange payments made by DMRC for the
Metro project of the company or imports made or components consumed by Delhi
Metro)

10. Some debit/credit balances of parties are subject to confirmation and reconciliation,

consequential impact thereofis given below:
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Debit Balances as at 31st March 2018.03.2018 Credit Balances as at
31stMarch 2018at 31.03.2018
Particulars Trade Receivable Others
(RefNote No.-6) (RefNote No.-5, 9) (Ref Note No. 14,17, 18,19)
Amount In (%) Amount | In(%) Amount In (%)

Balance for which 0.32 100% 1.33 0.02% 376.80 0.31%

confirmation certificate

received or reconciled

with customer/ vendors

Balances related to NIL NIL 791017 | 95.65% 121564.15 99.47%

Govt./PSU

Security Deposits NIL NIL 354.50 4.29% NIL

Eamest Money Deposit 50.36 0.04%

Balances under NIL NIL 348 0.04% 220.78 0.18%

Reconciliation

Total Debit/ Credit 0.32 100% 826948 | 100% 122212.09 100%

balance as per books
The amount with Govt./PSU represents amount due to or due from Delhi Metro Rail
Corporation and the accounts are reconciled, Further such liabilities represents to NCR
Planning Board, the account is reconciled.

11. Disclosures as per Guidance Note on “Accounting of CERs” issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India is not applicable as the Metro Project has not become
operational.

12. a) The company has not received any intimation from its vendors regarding their status
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence the
disclosures, if any under the said Act have not been made.

b) Amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount paid to supplier beyond the
appointed day- Rs. NIL
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Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006:-Rs.NIL

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid: Rs. NIL

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, till
such date, when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23, of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises DevelopmentAct, 2006- Rs. NIL

Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-1 “Presentation of
financial Statements”

Capital Management

The Debt: Equity ratio, which is Long Term Debt divided by total owner’s capital are as
follows:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

As at31stMarch 2018

Asat31stMarch2017

As at1stApril 2016

a) Total Debt

1,13,000.00

58,000.00

NIL

b) Total Capital

2,33,856.09

1,44,704.6

82,409.73

Debt: Equity Ratioa/b

0.48

0.40

N/A

14.

a)

b)

b)

15.

Disclosures in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-17 “Leases”

The company has taken on lease/rent premises for employees. These lease
arrangements are usually renewable on mutually agreed terms. During the year the
company has paid lease rent (net of recoveries) amounting to Rs. 5.42 Lakhs during
2017-18 and Rs. 4.53 Lakhs during 2016-17.

Disclosures regarding land for Metro Corridor and Staff Quarters which under operating
lease are given in Note no. 1.1 (Property, Plant & Equipment).

The company has entered into a operating lease agreement with Indraprastha Gases
Limited and the rentals are based on the CNG purchased from them. The land for which
such payments are made by Indraprastha Gas Limited belongs to the Greater Noida
Authority, who has given a right to claim the rent to the Noida Metro Rail Corporation.
There is no future commitment for any amount, which varies as per above arrangement.

Disclosures in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-19 “Employees
Benefits)

General description of various employees benefit schemes are as under:

a)

Provident Fund

The company pays its provident fund contributions to Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner. The company pays fixed contribution to provident fund at Pre-determined
rate. The liability is recognized on accrual basis
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Gratuity

The company has not yet taken any defined gratuity plan. However the company has a
policy to the gratuity to any employee who has rendered continuous service of five years
or more as per the Provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

Leave

The company provides for earned leave benefits and half pay leaves to the employees
of the company, which are annually at 30 days and 20 days respectively. Only the leave
in the encashable leave account is en-cashable once in a calendar year while in service
and maximum of 300 days on superannuation.

Leave Travel Concession

The company provides financial assistance in meeting the expenses of travel involve
while awailing of rest and recreation with their families away from head quarters at home
town or elsewhere periodically as per its policy.

Regarding disclosure wrt position of various defined benefit schemes, the company has
made major recruitments only from the month of February 2018 and on the basis of
Actuarial Valuation the provision have been made for Gratuity and Leave Encashment.

The summarized position as on 31.03.2018 is as under:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment
Assel/ (Liabilities) - (1.99) (6.21)
Actuarial Assumptions
Economic Assumptions
Discounting Rate 7.80 % 7.80%
Future Salary Increase 6.00 % 6.00 %
Expected rate of return on plan assets NIL NIL
Actuarial Method Projected Unit Projected Unit

Credit (PUC) Credit (PUC)

Change in Benefit Obligations
Current Service Cost 1.99 6.21
Fairvalue of assets/( liabilities) (1.99) (6.21)
Actuarial Gain/Loss on plan assets NIL NIL
Amountto be recognized in balance sheet
Present Value of Obligation as atthe end
of the period 1.99 6.21
Funded Status/difference (1.99) (6.21)
Net Assets/(Liability) recognizedin the balance sheet (1.99) (6.21)
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profitand Loss 1.99 (6.21)
Movement in Liability 1.89 6.21
Current Liability Nil 0.60
Non Current Liability 1.99 5.61
Sensitivity Analysis
Impact of change in discount rate
Present value of obligation atthe end of the year 1.99 6.21
Impactdue toincrease of 0.50% (0.21) (0.58)
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 0.25 0.67
Impact of the change in salary increase
Impact due toincrease of 0.50% 0.25 0.67
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% (0.22) (0.59)

67



16.

17.

b)

NMRC

Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-21 “The effect of changes
in Foreign Exchange Rates”

The amount of exchange difference (net) debited to Statement of Profit and Loss is
Rs.0.09 Lakhs (Previous Year Debit Rs. NIL)

Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-101 “First-time
adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”.

These are the Company’s first Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March
2018.

The accounting policies set out in Note No. 29 have been applied in preparation of
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2018, the comparative information
presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2017 and in the
preparation of opening Ind AS balance sheet as at 1st April 2016 (the Company’s date of
transition)

For transition to Ind AS the company has availed the following Mandatory/Optional
exemptions as per IndAS 101:

Deemed Cost for Property, Plant & Equipment: The company has availed
exemption under para D7AA of appendix D to Ind AS 101 which permits a first time
adopter to continue with the carrying values for its PPE as at date of transition to Ind
AS’s measured as per previous GAAP.

Classification & Fair Value measurement of financial assets or financial liabilities
atinitial recognition:

The financial assets and liabilities have been classified on the basis of facts existing as
at the date of transition to Ind AS. In addition, the exemption under para B8C and para
D20 permits prospective application of requirement of Ind AS 109 to transactions
entered into on or after the date of transition.

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the
company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in
following tables and Notes.

Reconciliation of total equity as at 31st March 2017 and 1stApril, 2016:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Notes to first Asat31st Asatist

time adoption March 2017 April 2016

Total equity (shareholders’ funds)

as per previous GAAP 144740.91 82566.11
Adjustments:

On account of Prior Period Items 1 (36.26) (156.38)
Total equity as perInd AS 144704.66 82409.73

Notes to first time adoption of Ind AS

Note -1

Adjustment of Prior Period Items

Prior Period Items have been adjusted to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the respective

yearsa

nd which have affected the amount of retained earnings of respective years.
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Note -2

Deferred Tax

Under Ind AS, deferred tax is created using a balance sheet approach considering the taxable
and deductible temporary differences, unlike previous GAAP where a concept of timing
difference was applied. As the company has not made a deferred tax provision, in view of
probability of not earning taxable profits in near future, there will be no impact of deferred tax on
the financial statements of the company.

Note -3

Measurement of financial asset and liabilities of amortized cost:

Under previous GAAP, all financial assets and financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost which involves the application off effective interest method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discount estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial assets or financial liabilities to the fair value amount on the date
of recognition of financial assets of financial liabilities.

Note 4

Non monetary grants

Under previous GAAP assets received free of cost were recognized at nominal value. Under
Ind AS assets such as land or other resources received from Government agencies are
recognized at fair value and corresponding amount is treated as Government Grant.

The land for the Metro Corridor has been provided by the Noida and Greater Noida Authority on
alease of 90 years at a nominal lease rent of Rs. 1/- per year and an agreement to this effect has
been entered only inthe next financial year. Value of such land has been considered in the DPR
at Rs. 33,900 Lakhs. The ownership rights of the land have not been transferred to the
company, hence the same has been considered to be an operating lease and no adjustment
has been made on this account.

Note-5

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings as at 1st April 2016 and 31.03.2017 have been adjusted consequent to the
above Ind AS transition adjustments.

18. Disclosures in respect of Ind AS 107- “Financial Instruments Disclosure:
i) Financial Instruments by Categories

Total carrying values of financial instruments by categories are as follows:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Asat31stMarch2018| Asat31stMarch2017 | Asat01stApril2016

Amortized | FVT | FVO|Amortized | FVT | FVO| Amortized| FVT | FVO
cost PL| Cl | cost Vi Cl cost PL | CI

Financial Assets

Other Financial Assets

(refernoteno.4 &9) 26.24 0] 0 20.41 0 0 0.00 0 0

Trade Receivable (refer Note 6) 0.32 0|0 1.23 0 0 0.00 0 [0

Cash & Cash Equivalents

(referNote 7) 4148267 | 0 | 0 | 15890.79 0 0| 1103873 | 0 0

Total 41509.23 | 0 | 0 [ 1591243 0 0 | 1103873 ] 0 0

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings (refer note14-) 113000.00 [ 0 | O | 58000.00 0 0 0 0 0

Other Financial Liabilites

(refer note 18) 801540 ( 0 | 0 | 3089.27 0 0| 196897 | O 0

Trade Payable (refer note 17) 398.056 [ 0 | O | 353.18 0 0 0|0

Total 12141345| 0 0 | 6144245 0 0 | 1968.97 0 0
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ii) Fair Value Hierarchy
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial
position are categorized into three level of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are
defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurements as follows:

. Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial instruments
that the entity can access atthe measurement date.

. Level 2-The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in a active marketis
determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of relevant observable
marketinput and minimize use of unobservable inputs.

. Level 3- If one or more ofthe significant inputs is not based on observable market input,
the instrument is categorized in level 3 of fair value hierarchy.

iiii) Financial Assets/Liabilities measured at amortized cost for which Fair Values are
disclosed:

( Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Level Asat3ist As at31st Asatist

March 2018 March 2017 April 2016
Carrying Fair | Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value Value Value

Financial Assets

Other Financial

Assets (ref note

no.4&9) Level 2 26.24 26.24 20.41 26.24 0 0

Total 26.24 26.24 20.41 26.24 0 0

Financial

Liabilities (ref note

no.15&18) Level2 | 8015.40| 8015.40 | 3089.27 | 3089.27 | 1968.97 | 1968.97

Total 8015.40 | 8015.40 | 3089.27 | 3089.27 | 1968.97 | 1968.97

iv) Valuation techniques and process used to determine fair value

a) The carrying value of financial assets and liabilities with maturities less than 12 months
are considered to be representative of their fair value.

b) Fair Value of other financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost is determined
by discounting of cash flows using a discount rate which is defined in Account Policy
No.15.

c) The company has Electricity Security Deposits and Telephone Security Deposits as
Non Current assets, but the same is not amortized as no discounting is required for in
the case of Electricity Security Deposit and Telephone Security Deposits.

d) Loans payable to NCR Planning Board as Non Current Financial Liabilities, is not

required to be discounted.
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18.2 Financial Risk Management

b)

Financial risk factors

The company is exposed to various risk in relation to financial instruments. The
company’s financial asset and liabilities by category are summarized above. The main
type of risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s risk
management focus on actively securing the Company’s short to medium term cash
flows by minimizing the exposure to volatile financial markets. The most significant
financial risks to which the company is exposed are described below:

Market Risk

The company does not have any interest rate risk since the only loan has been by the
company bears the fixed rate of the interest. Also company does not have price risk
since company is not having any derivative financial assets.

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a
financial loss. The company is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments, for
example by granting advances to employees, receivable from customers, security
deposits etc. The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily
from carrying amount of following types of financial assets.

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade Receivables
Other Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counter parties,
identified either individually or by the company, and incorporate this information into its
creditrisk controls.

Credit risk management

Cash and cash equivalent

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents is managed by placing funds in
scheduled commercial banks which are subject to the regulatory oversight of the
Reserve Bank of India, and these banking relationships are reviewed on an ongoing
basis.

Trade Receivables

The company has outstanding trade receivables (gross) amounting to Rs. 0.32 Lakhs
ason 31.03.2018 and Rs. 1.23 Lakhs as on 31.03.2017. Trade receivables are typically
unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers.

The company closely monitors the credit worthiness of the debtors and only deals with
credit worthy parties. At present there is only one customer from whom also the
company Is taking supplies and amount of revenue to the company based on the
supplies taken by it. So always more liabilities remains outstanding to be payable
against the trade receivable.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets which includes advances to employees and others measured at
amortized cost.
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Expected creditlosses
Company provides expected credit losses based on the following:
Trade receivables

Trade receivables are impaired when recoverability is considered doubtful based on
the recovery analysis performed by the company for individual trade receivables. The
company considers that allthe above financial assets that are not impaired and past
due for each reporting dates under review are of good quality.

The company has total trade receivable of Rs. 0.32 Lakhs as on 31.03.2018 and Rs.
1.23 Lakhs as on 31.03.2017, which were not pastdue.

OtherFinancial Assets measured at amortized loss

Creditrisk related to employee advances is negligible and also advances to employees
are immaterial. Credit risk related to other financial assets is managed by monitoring the
recoverability of such amounts continuously. There are no impairment provisions as at
each reporting date against these financial assets. We consider all the above financial
assets as atthe reporting dates to be of good credit quality.

Liquidity Risk

Our liquidity needs are monitored on the basis yearly projections. The company's
principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, revenue generated from
operations, share capital and grant.

The company manages its liquidity needs by continuously monitoring cash inflows
and by maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalents. Net cash requirements are
compared to available cashin order to determine any shortfalls.

Short term liquidity requirements consists mainly of sundry creditors, expenses
payable, employees dues, current payment of interest against loan from NCR Planning
Board, for payments of metro project to Delhi Metro Rail Corporation. For this a
sufficient balance in cash and cash equivalents to meet the short term liquidity
requirements is maintained. City Bus operations are running at loss and its
requirements are met by internal accruals and amount of grant from Noida and Greater
Noida Authority. Further metro project of the company is being managed and
constructed by Delhi Metro Rail Corporation. Cash flow requirement for the next month
is provided by them and accordingly funds are managed by way of grant.

Further long term liquidity requirements are assessed on a periodical basis and manage
them through grants. Our non currentliabilities include only Loans from NCR Planning
Board repayment of which will start during the year 2021-22.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of non—derivative
financial liabilities. The table have been drawn up based on the cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the company may be required to pay. The
table include both principal & Interest cash flow.
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(Rs. In Lakhs as at 31st March 2018)

Particulars Lessthan | 6 months 1to3 3to5 | Morethan Total
6months | to1year | years years | Syear

Borrowings (Refer Note 14) 0 0 0 14126.00 | 98874.00 | 113000.00

Other Financial Liabilities

(Refer Note 18) 6647.58 1367.82 0 0 0 8015.40

Trade Payables

(ReferNote 17) 398.05 0 0 0 0 398.05

Grand Total 7045.63 1367.82 0 14126.00 | 98874.00 | 121413.45

(Rs. In Lakhs as at 31st March 2017)

Particulars Lessthan | 6 months 1t03 3to5 More than Total
6months | tofiyear | years years Syear
Borrowings (Refer Note 14) 0 0 0 3626.00 | 54374.00 | 58000.00
Other Financial Liabilities
(Refer Note 18) 2247 55 841.71 0 0 0 3089.26
Trade Payables (Refer Note 17) 353.18 0 0 0 0 353.18
Grand Total 2600.73 841.71 0 3626.00 | 54374.00 | 61442.44
(Rs. In Lakhs as at 1st April 2016)
Particulars Lessthan | 6months | 1fo3 3to5 | Morethan| Total
6months | tolyear | years years Syear
Borrowings 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Financial Liabilities
(ReferNote 18) 1968.97 0 0 0 0 1968.97
Trade Payables (Refer Note17)
Grand Total 1968.97 0 0 0 0 1968.97
19. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Iind AS)-108 “Operating
Segments”.
a) Business Segment:
The operating segments used to present segment information are identified on the
basis of internal reports used by the company’s management to allocate resources to
the segments and assess their performance.
The company’s principal business segments are from Metro Services and City Bus
Service.
b) Segment Revenue and Expenses:

Metro Services: Metro project is under construction and metro services are yet to be
started.

City Bus Operations: Revenue directly attributable to this segment include income
from operation of city buses in Noida & Greater Noida , land rentals& Hybrid
Commission from IGL.

Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment Assets include all operating assets in respective segments comprising of net fixed
assets and current assets, loans and advances and capital work in progress and advances.
Assets relating to corporate are allocated in unallocated segments, Segment liabilities include
liabilities and provisions directly attributable to respective segments..
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(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars City Bus Operation Metro rail operation Total
2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2017-18 201617 | 201718 | 2016-17

A SegmentRevenue

Operating Income 981.31 138.91 0 0 981.31 138.91

Other Income 3131.64 | 996.39 460.13 1223.89 | 3691.77 | 2220.28
Less | Intt. onfombankdeposit 453.51 633.79 | 453.51 633.79

Total Income 4112.95 [ 1135.30 6.62 590.10 | 4119.57 | 1725.40
Less | Employee BenefitExp 0 0 149.13 116.90 149.13 116.90

Operating & other Exp 411295 | 1135.30 790.04 1764.31 | 490299 | 2899.61
B Segment Results

(EBDT) 0 0 (932.55) | (1291.11) | (932.55) | (1291.11)
Less | Depreciation 0 0 14.26 6.93 14.26 6.93

Finance Cost 0 0 0.62 1.49 0.62 1.49
C Profit Before Tax( PBT) 0 0 (947.43) | (1299.53) | (947.43) | (1299.53)

Interest on Bank Deposit 0 0 453,51 633.79 | 453.51 633.79

Provision fortaxes 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Profit 0 0 (493.93) | (665.74) | (493.93) | (665.74)
D Other Information
D.01 | SegmentAssets

Assets 27.14 379.05 |356049.24 | 206079.58 | 356076.38 | 206458.63

Unallocated assets 0 0 0 0

Total Assets 27.14 379.05 |356049.24 | 206079.58 | 356076.38 | 206458.63
D.02 | SegmentLiabilities

Liabilities 398.05 353.18 | 121822.24 | 61400.79 (12222029 | 61753.97

Unallocated Liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Liabilities 398.05 | 353.18 |[121822.24 | 61400.79 | 122220.29 | 61753.97
D.03 | Capital Expenditure

Netaddition to fixed assets| 0 0 122707.36 | 125289.40 [ 122707.36 | 125289.40

Total Addition 0 0 122707.36 | 125289.40| 122707.36 | 125289.40
20. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped, rearranged, reclassified, wherever

necessary due to applicability of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and to make
them comparable to the current year’s presentation.

21.  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs of rupees.

Name: Manoj Kumar Bhargava Alok Tandon Vinay Kumar Singh
Partner Managing Director Director
M.No.- 095441 DIN No: 01841717 DIN No.: 06497700

Date: 25.09.2018 Ms. Nisha Wadhawan P D Upadhyay
Place: Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M.No: 51239
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M/S NOIDA METRO RAIIL CORPORATION LIMITED

1. Reconciliation of Total Equity as at 31st March, 2017 and 1st April, 2016

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Notes to Asat Asat
firsttime 31st 1st
adoption | March,2017 | April, 2016
Total Equity (shareholder's funds) as per previous GAAP 1,44,740.91 82,566.11
Adjustments:
Classification of certain leases of land as operating lease - -
Capitalization of capital spares - -
Deferred Taximpact of Ind AS Adjustments » 2
Non Monetary Grants received from GovernmentAgencies - -
Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities at Amortized Cost - -
Others -36.26 -156.38
Total Adjustments -36.26 -156.38
Total Equity as perind AS 1,44,704.66 82,409.73

2. Reconciliation of total Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31st March, 2017

(Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars Notes to Fortheyear
firsttime ended on 31st
adoption March, 2017
Profit/ (Loss) after tax as per previous GAAP -832.52
Adjustments:
Classification of certain leases of land as operating lease -
Capitalization of capital spares -
Deferred Taximpact of Ind AS Adjustments -
Measurement of Financial Assets and liabilities at amortized cost -
Remeasurement of defined Benefit Plans -
Others 120.12
Total Adjustments 120.12
Profit/ (Loss) after tax reported under Ind AS -7112.40
Other comprehensive Income (OCI) (net of tax)
Remeasurement of defined Benefit Plans -
Total Comprehensive Profit/ (Loss) under Ind-AS -712.40
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NOIDA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
RECONCILIATION BETWEEN PREVIOUS GAAP AND IND AS FOR IMPACT ON
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Previous GAAP | Adjustments| IndASForthe
Forthe Yearended Yearended
March 31,2017 March 31,2017

INCOME
i) Revenue from Operations 138.91 - 138.91
i) Otherincome 2,220.27 - 2,220.27
TOTAL INCOME 2,359.18 - 2,359.18
EXPENDITURE
i) Operating Expenses 1,117.31 17.99 1,135.30
i) Employees'Benefits Expenses 113.44 3.46 116.90
iil) Finance Cost 149 - 149
iv) Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 6.93 - 6.93
v) Other Expenses 1,749.50 14.81 1,764.31
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 2,988.66 36,26 3,024,92
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEM & TAX (629.48) (36.26) (665.74)
Exceptional ltem (156.38) 156.38 .
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (785.86) 120.12 (665.74)
Tax Expenses
i) Income tax 0.00 0.00 0.00
i)y Deferred Tax (46.66) - (46.66)
PROFIT/(LOSS) DURING THEYEAR (832.52) 120.12 (712.40)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INOCME
i) Items thatwill not be reclassified to Profit & Loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans - -

Less Deferred Tax relating to item that will notbe

reclassified to Profit & Loss - -
i) Itemsthatwill be reclassified to Profit & Loss - -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INOCME/(LOSS) - - .
[FOR THE YEAR
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INOCME/(LOSS)
FORTHEYEAR (832.52) 120.12 (712.40)
Earning Per Share
Basic (2.77) (2.37)
Diluted (2.77) (2.37)
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NOIDA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

(Rs.inLakhs)

S. [Particulars

Fortheyear
ended Marc
31,2018

Fortheyear
ended March
31,2017

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit/ (Loss) before exiraordinary items and tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization

Adjustment of Grant used for city bus services
Interestincome

Net unrealized exchange (gain) / loss

14.26
(3,131.63)
(456.26)

(493.93)

6.93
(978.39)
(633.79)

(665.74)

Total (2)

(3,573.64)

(1,605.26)

Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes (142)

(4,067.57)

(2,270.99)

Changes inworking capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Trade receivables

Other Financial Assets

Other Current Assets

Current TaxAssets

Adjustments forincrease/ (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables

Other Financial Liabilities

Other current liabilities

Provisions

0.91
(5.83)
(1,739.22)
(0.98)

4487
4,926.14
487.12
8.19

3,721.20

(1.23)
(20.41)

(244.60)
(9.98)

353.18
1,120.30
89.33
(31.92)

1,254.66

Cash flow from operating activities before tax and
extraordinary items (3+4)

(346.37)

(1,016.33)

Cash flow from extraordinary items

Cash generated from operations (5+6)

(346.37)

(1,016.33)

Netincome tax (paid)/refunds

Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A) (7-8)

(346.37)

(1,016.33)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

= o M = mlr|e| -

Capital expenditure on fixed assets

Other Non CurrentAssets

Interest received

Cash flow from investing activities before tax and
extraordinary items (1-13)

Cash flow from extraordinary items

(1,22,707.36)
412,35
456.26

(1,21,838.75)

(1,25,289.40)
8,538.29
633.79

(1,16,117.32)

Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities (14+15)

(1,21,838.75)

(1,16,117.32)

m ~N| oo

Netincome tax (paid) / refunds

Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities {(B) (16-17)

(1,21,838.75)

(1,16,117.32)
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C | C.Cash flow fromfinancing activities

1 | Proceeds from Grant Received From Govemment or
its Body's including Interest thereon

2 | Share application money received/ (refunded)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings

24,015.00
68,762.00
55,000.00

63,985.72

58,000.00

Total Cash flow from financing activities before

extraordinary items (1-13) 1,47,777.00 1,21,985.72
5 |Cash flowfrom extraordinary items - -
Netcash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C) 14+15 1,47,777.00 1,21,985.72
Netincrease/(decrease)in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 25,591.88 4,852.06
Cash and cash equivalents atthe beginning of the year 15,890.79 11,038.73
Effectof exchange differences on restatement of foreign
currency Cash and cash equivalents - 0.00
Cash and cash equivalents atthe end of the year 41,482.67 15,890.79

As per Our Report Attached.
For Samprk & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN-013022N

Name: Manoj Kumar Bhargava

For and on behalf of the Board

Alok Tandon

Partner Managing Director
M.No.- 095441 DIN No: 01841717
Date: 25.09.2018 Ms. Nisha Wadhawan
Place: Delhi Company Secretary
M.No: 51239
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Director
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P D Upadhyay

Chief Financial Officer
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"Audit Bhawan" TC-35-C-1, Vibhuti Khand,
Gomti Nagar, Lucknow-226010
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The Report has been prepared on the basis of information furnished and
made available by the auditee. The Office of the Accountant General (Economic and
Revenue Sector Audit), Uttar Pradesh, disclaims any responsibility for any
misinformation and/or non-information on the part of auditee.
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CCEAD
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TETA GBI

GRHATH: 0522—2970549, 2970559, Hawl: 0522—2722106
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143 (6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF NOIDA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2018

The preparation of financial statements of Noida Metro Rail Corporation Limited (NMRC) for the
year ended 31 March 2018 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the Management of the company.
The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section
139(5) or 139(7) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the Financial Statements
under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them
vide their Audit Report dated 29 September 2018.

[, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a Supplementary
Audit of financial statements of NOIDA Metro Rail Corporation Limited, Noida for the year ended
31 March 2018 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried
out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited
primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and Company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant matters
under Section 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and, which in my view, are
necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the related audit
report:

Comments on Financial Position

Balance Sheet

Equity and Liabilities

Equity Share Capital (Note-12): Rs. 300.05 crore

(i) As per clause 3 of the Articles of Association (AOA) of the Company, NMRC is a
Government Company. As per Section 2(45) of the Companies Act 2013, "Government
company means any company in which not less than fifty one percent of the paid -up
share capital is held by the Central Government, or by any State Government or
Governments, or partly by the Central Government and partly by one or more State
Governments, and includes a company which is a subsidiary company of such a
Government company”.

As on 31 March 2018, the paid up capital of Rs. 300.05 crore (3,00,05,000 equity shares
of 100 each) of the Company is subscribed by NOIDA and Greater Noida Authorities
which are the autonomous bodies of the Government of Uttar Pradesh. Shareholding by
autonomous Bodies on behalf of the State Government is not covered under the
definition in Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013. The shareholding held by above
autonomous bodies should have been allotted to Governor of Uttar Pradesh for the
Company to be categorised as a Government Company in terms of the Companies Act,
2013.
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(ii)

(iif)
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Reference is invited to 'Other Matters' Para 2 of the Independent Auditors' Report
wherein they have stated: " As per Clause 1 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Company is a Special Purpose Vehicle in the nature of Joint venture with
the contribution of 50:50 Government of India and Government of Uttar Pradesh. The
Share Capital of the Company is held by NOIDA Authority and Greater NOIDA
Authority in the proportion of 2,10,03,500 and 80,01,500 shares respectively which are
autonomous bodies of the State Government of UP. Further, Government of India has
given share application money for 6,87,62,000 shares, allotment of which has been
made during the financial year 2018-19. Hence shareholding is not in proportion in
accordance with provisions as per Articles of Association. Our report is not qualified in
respect of this matter”.

The above comment of the Statutory Auditor is deficient as it does not bring out that
during 2017-18, the Company has not fulfilled the requirement of Section 2(45) of the
Companies Act 2013 to be categorised as a Government Company.

A tripartite Memorandum of Understanding was executed (17 February 2018) among
Government of India, Government of Uttar Pradesh and the Company for Noida-
Greater Noida Rail Project with project financing pattern which inter-alia included equity
contribution by the Government of India (Gol) and the Government of Uttar Pradesh
(GoUP) in the ratio of 50:50. This fact, having a bearing on shareholding pattern has not
been disclosed in the Note 12 of Notes forming part of Financial Statements.

Despite comment of the CAG on the account of the Company for the year 2016-17, no
corrective action has been taken by the management.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General Of India

(Saurabh Narain)

Place: Lucknow

Date: December 2018

Accountant General
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Annexure to the Management Letter No.: W& €. ga.—1—a@/NMRCL/2017-18 /fR=e: RawR
2018 drawing attention to the observations on the accounts for the year ending 31 March
2018

Balance Sheet
D. Other Comments :

General

(i) In terms of the section 2(40) of the 2013 Act, "financial statement" includes a balance
sheet as at the end of the financial year, a profit and loss account for the financial year,
cash flow statement for the financial year, a statement of change in equity and notes to
accounts forming part of the financial statements. In terms of section 134(1)
Companies, 2013 the financial statements shall be signed on behalf of the Board at least
by the chairperson of the company where he is authorized by the Board or by the two
directors out of which one shall be managing director and the Chief Executive Officer, if
he is a director of the company, the Chief Financial Officer and the company secretary of
the company. All notes to account of Financial Statements has not been signed by the
aforesaid authorised signatories. Hence authentication of financial statement has not
been done as required by section 134(1) ofthe Companies Act 2013.

(ii) The following arithmetical inaccuracies are noticed in the Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 March 2018 as detailed below:

Sl. | Statement/Note As depicted | Asitshouldbe | Remarks
No (Rs.inlakh) | (Rs.inlakh)
1 | Statementof Profitand Loss 5067.00 5067.01 Totalling mistake
in expenditure
2 | Statementof Profitand Loss (493.93) (493.94) Figure of loss
changed due to above
3 | Statementof Change in Equity 1353.13 1353.12 Retained earnings
4 | Note-2 Capital workin 649.21 649.22 Electric connection
progress charges
5 | Note-2 Capital workin 304245.06 304245.08 Total of figure "As at
progress March 31,2018"
6 | Note-13 Otherequity 207961.12 207961.11 Grand Total
7 | Note-26 Other Expenses 790.05 790.06 Total

(iii) Explanatory Note for Note no.9 below Current Financial Assets- others (Note-9)
stipulated "Short term advance above includes an amount of Rs. 7112.26 lakhs
(Previous Year Rs. 15875.39 lakh) paid to DMRC for the Construction of Metro corridor
but has not been utilised by the DMRC".

The above explanatory note does not pertain to Note 9.

(R. K. Verma)
Sr. Audit Officer
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